10.

11.

WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP
COMMITTEE MEETING
May 7, 2024
7:00 PM Regular Meeting, Courtroom

Call Regular Meeting to Order

Requirements of the Sunshine Law (This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County
Times on January 7, 2024 and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39-1.5).

Pledge of Allegiance
Moment of Silence
Roll Call

Executive Session:

Resolution No. 05.07.2024 - Resolution Authorizing the Township Committee and Support
Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the Exclusion of the Public From that
Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific Issues Requiring Non-Public Discussions:
Attorney-Client Privilege — Contract Negotiation.

Presentation: 2023 Police Department Awards
a. Officer of the Year
b. Chief’s Award

Approval of Minutes
a. April 16, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
b. April 16,2024 Executive Session Minutes

Open Meeting to Public Comment on Agenda Items Only — Please remember to state your
name and address for the record.

ORDINANCES: Second Reading, Public Comment

a. 3-2024 An Ordinance by the Township Committee Amending the Westampton
Township Code of Ordinances to Repeal Ordinance 13-2017; to Adopt a New Ordinance
3-2024; to Adopt Flood Hazard Maps; to Designate a Floodplain Administrator; and
Providing for Severability and An Effective Date.

b. 6-2024 Calendar Year 2024 Ordinance to Exceed the Municipal Budget Appropriation
Limits and to Establish a CAP Bank

c. 8-2024 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Westampton Township Code
Entitled “Alcoholic Beverages”

RESOLUTIONS:
a. 67-24 Payment of Vouchers — this resolution approves the payment of bills through
05/07/2024.



b. 68-24 Resolution Authorizing Adopting the 2024 Municipal Budget

12. CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTIONS - RESOLUTIONS NOTE: Consent Agenda items
are considered to be routine and will be enacted with a single motion; any items requiring
expenditure are supported by a Certification of Availability of funds; any items requiring
discussion will be removed from the Consent Agenda.

a. 69-24 Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Agreement Between the Township of
Westampton and the Members of the IAFF

b. 70-24 Resolution Establishing Promotional Criteria for Lieutenant for the Westampton
Township Emergency Services

c. 71-24 Resolution Approving Refunds for Totally Disabled Veteran

13. Open Meeting for Public Comment - Please remember to state your name and address for
the record.

14. Dates to Remember: Next Township Committee Meeting May 21st (@ 7PM, Land
Development Board Meeting June 5th @7PM, Historic Commission May 22nd @ 7PM,
Recreation Committee Meeting May 8th @7PM, Stop the Bleed @ Firehouse May 16th

@6:30PM.
15. Committee Liaison Reports/Comments
16. Adjournment

Please note:
During the first public comment period, any resident or taxpayer of Westampton is welcome to comment on any
governmental item of concern limited to the ordinances and resolutions being considered this evening. The second
public comment period is open to any item of concern. A total of thirty (30) minutes has been allocated for each of the
public comment periods. This time may be extended by the Committee.

If you wish to be heard, come to the podium and give your name and address to the Clerk for the record. The amount of
discussion of any single speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Large groups are urged to select someone to
represent them. No speaker shall engage in any personally offensive, derogatory or abusive remarks. The Mayor shall
immediately call to order any speaker who violates this provision. An officer of the WTPD may remove any disruptive
person at the Mayor’s discretion.

Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to present their views—both positive and negative. It is not a
question-and-answer period. Neither the Mayor nor Committee Members will engage in a back-and-forth exchange so
speakers are encouraged to present all their views. The Mayor as well as any Committee Member may respond to any
comment after such speaker is finished. The Mayor may refer the speaker to the Township Administrator, Department
Head or any Committee Member to respond in writing.



RESOLUTION No. 05/07/2024
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC FROM PUBLIC MEETING

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

WHEREAS, Section 7.a of Chapter 231 Public Law 1975, otherwise known as the “Open
Public Meetings Act” states that except as provided by Section 7.b, all meetings of a public
body, such as the Township Committee, shall be open to the public at all times; and

WHEREAS, Section 7.b provides that the Township Committee may exclude the public
only from the portion of a meeting at which the Township Committee discusses certain subjects
which are listed in said Section; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee desires to discuss certain subject(s) which are
listed in said section and desires to exclude the public from the portion of the meeting at which
the Township Committee will discuss said subject(s); and

WHEREAS, Section 8 of Chapter 231, Public Law 1975 states that no public body shall
exclude the public from any meeting to discuss any matter described in Section 7.b until the
public body shall, at a meeting to which the public shall be admitted, first adopt a Resolution
making certain statements with respect to the subject(s) to be discussed.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Westampton in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows:

1. That the Township hereby declares that the general nature of the subject(s) to be
discussed by the Township Committee in closed session is as follows:

a. Attorney Client Privilege — Contract Negotiation

That the Township Committee hereby declares that its discussion of theaforementioned
subject(s) may be made public at a time when the Township Attorney advises the
Township Committee that the disclosure of the discussion will not detrimentally affect any
right, interest or duty of the Township or any other entity with respect to said discussion.

2. That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that the
public is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion
shall take place and hereby directs the Township Clerk to take the appropriate action to
effectuate the terms of this Resolution.



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road,
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote

Committee Introduced | Seconded| Yes No Abstain Absent
Member

Burkley

Carr

Mayor Henley

Mungo

Wright




ORDINANCE FOR ADOPTION OF THE FLOODPLAIN MANAGEM ENT
REGULATIONS

OF WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP

AN ORDINANCE BY THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE AMENDING THE
WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REPEAL AND
REPLACE CHAPTER 131 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT; TO ADOPT FLOOD
HAZARD MAPS; TO DESIGNATE A FLOODPLAIN ADMNISTRATOR; AND
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

ORDINANCE NO. 3-2024

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of New Jersey has, in N.J.S.A. 40:48 et seq
and N.J.S.A. 40:55D et seq., conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt
regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry;
and

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has identified special flood
hazard areas within the boundaries of Westampton Township and such areas may be subject to
periodic inundation which may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards,
disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood
protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public
health, safety and general welfare, and

WHEREAS, the Westampton Township was accepted for participation in the National
Flood Insurance Program on February 15, 1980 and the Township Committee desires to
continue to meet the requirements of Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Sections 59, 60, 65
and 70 necessary for such participation; and

WHEREAS, the Westampton Township is required, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:23 et seq.,
to administer and enforce the State building codes, and such building codes contain certain
provisions that apply to the design and construction of buildings and structures in flood hazard
areas; and

WHEREAS, the Westampton Township is required, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:49-5, to
enforce zoning codes that secure safety from floods and contain certain provisions that apply to
the development of lands; and

WHEREAS, the Westampton Township is required, pursuant to N.J.S.A.58:16A-57,
within 12 months after the delineation of any flood hazard area, to adopt rules and regulations
concerning the development and use of land in the flood fringe area which at least conform to the
standards promulgated by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of
Westampton Township that the following floodplain management regulations are hereby
adopted.



SECTION 1. RECITALS

The foregoing whereas clauses are incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

SECTION 2. These regulations specifically repeal and replace the following ordinance(s) and
regulation(s): Repeal Chapter 131 Floodplain Management and replace with Chapter 131
Floodplain Management.

ARTICLE | SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

131-1 Title. These regulations, in combination with the flood provisions of the Uniform
Construction Code (UCC) N.J.A.C. 5:23 (hereinafter “Uniform Construction Code,”
consisting of the Building Code, Residential Code, Rehabilitation Subcode, and related codes,
and the New Jersey Flood Hazard Area Control Act (hereinafter “FHACA™), N.J.A.C. 7:13,
shall be known as the Floodplain Management Regulations of Westampton Township
(hereinafter “these regulations™).

131-2 Scope. These regulations, in combination with the flood provisions of the Uniform
Construction Code and FHACA shall apply to all proposed development in flood hazard
areas established in Article Il of these regulations.

131-3 Purposes and objectives. The purposes and objectives of these regulations are to
promote the public health, safety and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses
due to flood conditions in specific flood hazard areas through the establishment of
comprehensive regulations for management of flood hazard areas, designed to:

(1) Protect human life and health.

(2) Prevent unnecessary disruption of commerce, access, and public service during times
of flooding.

(3) Manage the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels and shorelines;

(4) Manage filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase
flood damage or erosion potential.

(5) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will divert
floodwater or increase flood hazards.

(6) Contribute to improved construction techniquesin the floodplain.
(7) Minimize damage to public and private facilities and utilities.

(8) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of
flood hazard areas.

(9) Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding.

(10) Ensure that property owners, occupants, and potential owners are aware of
property located in flood hazardareas.

(11) Minimize the need for future expenditure of public funds for flood control projects and



response to and recovery from flood events.

(12) Meet the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program for community participation
set forth in Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 59.22.

131-4  Coordination with Building Codes. Pursuant to the requirement established in
N.J.A.C. 5:23, the Uniform Construction Code, that the Westampton Township administer and
enforce the State building codes, the Township Committee of Westampton Township does
hereby acknowledge that the Uniform Construction Code contains certain provisions that apply
to the design and construction of buildings and structures in flood hazard areas. Therefore, these
regulations are intended to be administered and enforced in conjunction with the Uniform
Construction Code.

131-5 Ordinary Building Maintenance and Minor Work. Improvements defined as
ordinary building maintenance and minor work projects by the Uniform Construction Code
including non-structural replacement-in-kind of windows, doors, cabinets, plumbing fixtures,
decks, walls, partitions, new flooring materials, roofing, etc. shall be evaluated by the Floodplain
Administrator through the floodplain development permit to ensure compliance with the
Substantial Damage and Substantial Improvement Section 131-26 of this ordinance.

131-6  Warning. The degree of flood protection required by these regulations is considered
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger
floods can and will occur. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes.
Enforcement of these regulations does not imply that land outside the special flood hazard areas, or
that uses permitted within such flood hazard areas, will be free from flooding or flood damage.

131-7  Other laws. The provisions of these regulations shall not be deemed to nullify
any provisions of local, State, or Federal law.

131-8 Violations and Penalties for Noncompliance. No structure or land shall
hereafter be constructed, re-located to, extended, converted, or altered without full
compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations. Violation of
the provisions of this ordinance by failure to comply with any of its requirements
(including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with
conditions) shall constitute a violation under N.J.S.A. 40:49-5. Any person who violates
this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall be subject to one (1) or
more of the following: a fine of not more than $1250, imprisonment for a term not
exceeding ninety(90) days or a period of community service not exceeding 90 days.

Each day in which a violation of an ordinance exists shall be considered to be a separate and
distinct violation subject to the imposition of a separate penalty for each day of the violation as
the Court may determine except that the owner will be afforded the opportunity to cure or abate
the condition during a 30 day period and shall be afforded the opportunity for a hearing before
the court for an independent determination concerning the violation. Subsequent to the
expiration of the 30 day period, a fine greater than $1250 may be imposed if the court has not
determined otherwise, or if upon reinspection of the property, it is determined that the



abatement has not been substantially completed.

Any person who is convicted of violating an ordinance within one year of the date of a previous
violation of the same ordinance and who was fined for the previous violation, shall be sentenced
by a court to an additional fine as a repeat offender. The additional fine imposed by the court
upon a person for a repeated offense shall not be less than the minimum or exceed the
maximum fine fixed for a violation of the ordinance, but shall be calculated separately from the
fine imposed for the violation of the ordinance.

A. Solid Waste Disposal in a Flood Hazard Area. Any person who has unlawfully
disposed of solid waste in a floodway or floodplain who fails to comply with this
ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall upon conviction thereof be
fined not more than $2500 or up to a maximum penalty by a fine not exceeding $10,000
under N.J.S.A. 40:49-5.

131-9  Abrogation and greater restrictions. These regulations supersede any ordinance in
effect in flood hazard areas. However, these regulations are not intended to repeal or abrogate
any existing ordinances including land development regulations, subdivision regulations, zoning
ordinances, stormwater management regulations, or building codes. In the event of a conflict
between these regulations and any other ordinance, code, or regulation, the more restrictive shall
govern.

ARTICLE Il APPLICABILITY

131-10 General. These regulations, in conjunction with the Uniform Construction Code,
provide minimum requirements for development located in flood hazard areas, including the
subdivision of land and other developments; site improvements and installation of utilities;
placement and replacement of manufactured homes; placement of recreational vehicles; new
construction and alterations, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or additions of existing
buildings and structures; substantial improvement of existing buildings and structures,
including repair of substantial damage; installation of tanks; temporary structures and
temporary or permanent storage; utility and miscellaneous Group U buildings and structures;
and certain building work exempt from permit under the Uniform Construction Code; and other
buildings and development activities.

131-11 Establishment of Flood Hazard Areas. The Westampton Township was accepted for
participation in the National Flood Insurance Program on February 15, 1980.

The National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) floodplain management regulations encourage
that all Federal, State, and Local regulations that are more stringent than the minimum NFIP
standards take precedence in permitting decisions. The FHACA requires that the effective
Flood Insurance Rate Map, most recent preliminary FEMA mapping and flood studies, and
Department delineations be compared to determine the most restrictive mapping. The FHACA
also regulates unstudied flood hazard areas in watersheds measuring 50 acres or greater in size
and most riparian zones in New Jersey. Because of these higher standards, the regulated flood



hazard area in New Jersey may be more expansive and more restrictive than the FEMA Special
Flood Hazard Area. Maps and studies that establish flood hazard areas are on file at the
Westampton Township Municipal Building, Clerk’s Office, located at 710 Rancocas Road,
Westampton, NJ 08060.

The following sources identify flood hazard areas in this jurisdiction and must be considered
when determining the Best Available Flood Hazard Data Area:

1)

2)

Effective Flood Insurance Study. Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAS) identified
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in a scientific and engineering
report entitled “Flood Insurance Study Burlington County, New Jersey (All
Jurisdictions)” dated August 28, 2019 and the accompanying Flood Insurance Rate
Maps (FIRM) identified in Table 102.2(1) whose top level document (appendix map)
effective date is August 28, 2019 are hereby adopted by reference.

Table 102.2(1)

Map Panel # | Effective Suffix Map Panel # | Effective Suffix
Date Date

34005C0136 | 12/21/2017 | F 34005C0143 | 12/21/2017 | F
34005C0137 | 12/21/2017 | F 34005C0144 | 12/21/2017 | F
34005C0138 | 12/21/2017 | F 34005C0251 | 12/21/2017 | F
34005C0139 | 12/21/2017 | F 34005C0252 | 12/21/2017 | F
34005C0141 | 12/21/2017 | F 34005C0256 | 12/21/2017 | F
34005C0142 | 12/21/2017 | F

Federal Best Available Information. Westampton Township shall utilize Federal
flood information as listed in the table below that provides more detailed hazard
information, higher flood elevations, larger flood hazard areas, and results in more
restrictive regulations. This information may include but is not limited to preliminary
flood elevation guidance from FEMA (such as Advisory Flood Hazard Area Maps,
Work Maps or Preliminary FIS and FIRM). Additional Federal Best Available
studies issued after the date of this ordinance must also be considered. These studies
are listed on FEMA’s Map Service Center. This information shall be used for
floodplain regulation purposes only.



3)

4)

Table 102.2(2)

Map Panel # | Preliminary | Map Panel | Preliminary
Date # Date

None as of
the date of
this
ordinance

Other Best Available Data. Westampton Township shall utilize high water
elevations from flood events, groundwater flooding areas, studies by federal or state
agencies, or other information deemed appropriate by the Westampton Township .
Other “best available information” may not be used which results in less restrictive
flood elevations, design standards, or smaller flood hazard areas than the sources
described in Section 131-11 (1) and (2), above. This information shall be used for
floodplain regulation purposes only.

State Regulated Flood Hazard Areas. For State regulated waters, the NJ
Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) identifies the flood hazard area as
the land, and the space above that land, which lies below the “Flood Hazard Area
Control Act Design Flood Elevation”, as defined in Article 1X, and as described in
the New Jersey Flood Hazard Area Control Act at N.J.A.C. 7:13. A FHACA flood
hazard area exists along every regulated water that has a drainage area of 50 acres or
greater. Such area may extend beyond the boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard
Areas (SFHAS) as identified by FEMA. The following is a list of New Jersey State
studied waters in this community under the FHACA, and their respective map
identification numbers.

Table 102.2(3) List of State Studied Waters

Name of Studied Water File Name Map Number
North Branch Rancocas Creek M0000069 NBRC-3, 18
North Branch Rancocas Creek M0000070 NBRC-2, 17

North Branch Rancocas Creek, South Branch

Rancocas Creek

M0000071 NBRC-1, 16

Trib. To Assiscunk Creek M0000072 TAC-1,11
Mill Creek, Trib. To Mill Creek MO0000073 MC-4, 10
Mill Creek, Trib. To Mill Creek MO0000074 MC-3,9

Rancocas Creek, North Branch Rancocas

Creek, South Branch Rancocas Creek

M0000077 RC-6, 15

Rancocas Creek M0000078 RC-5, 14

Mill Creek X0000028 lofl

South Branch Rancocas Creek MO0000169p 03P




North Branch Rancocas Creek MO0000170p 02P
North Branch Rancocas Creek MO0000171p 01P
Assiscunk Creek Tributary M0000192p 06P
Tributary to Mill Creek MO0000193p 05P
Mill Creek MO0000194p | 04P
North Branch Rancocas Creek MO0000195p 03P
North Branch Rancocas Creek MO0000196p 02P
Rancocas Creek MO0000197p 01P
North Branch Rancocas Creek M0000203p 01P
Mill Creek MO0000208p | O5P
Rancocas Creek MO0000211p 02P

131-12  Establishing the Local Design Flood Elevation (LDFE).

The Local Design Flood Elevation (LDFE) is established in the flood hazard areas determined
in Section 131-11, above, using the best available flood hazard data sources, and the Flood
Hazard Area Control Act minimum Statewide elevation requirements for lowest floors in A,
Coastal A, and V zones, ASCE 24 requirements for critical facilities as specified by the building
code, plus additional freeboard as specified by this ordinance.

At a minimum, the Local Design Flood Elevation shall be as follows:

1) For a delineated watercourse, the elevation associated with the Best Available Flood
Hazard Data Area determined in Section 131-11, above plus one foot or as described by
N.J.A.C. 7:13 of freeboard; or

2) For any undelineated watercourse (where mapping or studies described in 102.2 (1) and
(2) above are not available) that has a contributory drainage area of 50 acres or more, the
applicants must provide one of the following to determine the Local Design Flood
Elevation:

a. A copy of an unexpired NJDEP Flood Hazard Area Verification plus one foot of
freeboard and any additional freeboard as required by ASCE 24; or

b. A determination of the Flood Hazard Area Design Flood Elevation using Method
5 or Method 6 (as described in N.J.A.C. 7:13) plus one foot of freeboard and any
additional freeboard as required by ASCE 24. Any determination using these
methods must be sealed and submitted according to Section131-35 and 36.

3) AO Zones — For Zone AO areas on the municipality’s FIRM (or on preliminary flood
elevation guidance from FEMA), the Local Design Flood Elevation is determined from
the FIRM panel as the highest adjacent grade plus the depth number specified plus one
foot of freeboard. If no depth number is specified, the Local Design Flood Elevation is
three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade.



4) Class IV Critical Facilities - For any proposed development of new and substantially
improved Flood Design Class IV Critical Facilities, the Local Design Flood Elevation
must be the higher of the 0.2% annual chance (500 year) flood elevation or the Flood
Hazard Area Design Flood Elevation with an additional 2 feet of freeboard in accordance
with ASCE 24,

5) Class Il Critical Facilities - For proposed development of new and substantially
improved Flood Design Class 111 Critical Facilities in coastal high hazard areas, the Local
Design Flood Elevation must be the higher of the 0.2% annual chance (500 year) flood
elevation or the Flood Hazard Area Design Flood Elevation with an additional 1 foot of
freeboard in accordance with ASCE 24.

ARTICLE 111 DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE FLOODPLAIN
ADMINISTRATOR

131-13 Floodplain Administrator Designation. The Construction Official is designated
the Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the authority to
delegate performance of certain duties to other employees.

131-14 General. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized and directed to administer the
provisions of these regulations. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the authority to render
interpretations of these regulations consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations and
to establish policies and procedures in order to clarify the application of its provisions. Such
interpretations, policies and procedures shall be consistent with the intent and purpose of these
regulations and the flood provisions of the building code and shall not have the effect of waiving
specific requirements without the granting of a variance pursuant to Article VII of these
regulations.

131-15 Coordination. The Floodplain Administrator shall coordinate with the Construction
Official to administer and enforce the flood provisions of the Uniform Construction Code.

131-16 Duties. The duties of the Floodplain Administrator shall include but are not limited
to:

(1) Review all permit applications to determine whether proposed development
is located in flood hazard areas established in Article 11 of these regulations.

(2) Require development in flood hazard areas to be reasonably safe from flooding and
to be designed and constructed with methods, practices and materials that minimize
flood damage.

(3) Interpret flood hazard area boundaries and provide available flood elevation and
flood hazard information.

(4) Determine whether additional flood hazard data shall be obtained or developed.

(5) Review required certifications and documentation specified by these regulations
and the building code to determine that such certifications and documentations are



complete.

(6) Establish, in coordination with the Construction Official, written procedures
for administering and documenting determinations of substantial
improvement and substantial damage made pursuant to Section 131-26 of
these regulations.

(7) Coordinate with the Construction Official and others to identify and investigate
damaged buildings located in flood hazard areas and inform owners of the
requirement to obtain permits for repairs.

(8) Review requests submitted to the Construction Official seeking approval to modify
the strict application of the flood load and flood resistant construction requirements
of the Uniform Construction code to determine whether such requests require
consideration as a variance pursuant to Article V11 of these regulations.

(9) Require applicants who submit hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analyses to
support permit applications to submit to FEMA the data and information necessary
to maintain the Flood Insurance Rate Maps when the analyses propose to change
base flood elevations, flood hazard area boundaries, or floodway designations; such
submissions shall be made within 6 months of such data becoming available.

(10) Require applicants who propose alteration of a watercourse to notify adjacent
jurisdictions and the NJDEP Bureau of Flood Engineering, and to submit copies of
such notifications to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

(11) Inspect development in accordance with Article VI of these regulations and
inspect flood hazard areas to determine if development is undertaken without
issuance of permits.

(12) Prepare comments and recommendations for consideration when applicants
seek variances in accordance with Article V11 of these regulations.

(13) Cite violations in accordance with Article V111 of these regulations.

(14) Notify the Federal Emergency Management Agency when the corporate
boundaries of Westampton Township have been modified.

(15) Permit Ordinary Maintenance and Minor Work in the regulated areas
discussed in Section 131-11.

131-17 Use of changed technical data. The Floodplain Administrator and the applicant shall
not use changed flood hazard area boundaries or base flood elevations for proposed buildings or
developments unless the Floodplain Administrator or applicant has applied for a Conditional
Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) to the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) revision and has
received the approval of the Federal Emergency Management Agency. A revision of the
effective FIRM does not remove the related feature(s) on a flood hazard area delineation that has
been promulgated by the NJDEP. A separate application must be made to the State pursuant to
N.J.A.C. 7:13 for revision of a flood hazard design flood elevation, flood hazard area limit,
floodway limit, and/or other related feature.

131-18 Other permits. It shall be the responsibility of the Floodplain Administrator to assure



that approval of a proposed development shall not be given until proof that necessary permits
have been granted by Federal or State agencies having jurisdiction over such development,
including section 404 of the Clean Water Act. In the event of conflicting permit requirements,
the Floodplain Administrator must ensure that the most restrictive floodplain management
standards are reflected in permit approvals.

131-19 Determination of Local Design Flood Elevations. If design flood elevations are not
specified, the Floodplain Administrator is authorized to require the applicant to:

(1) Obtain, review, and reasonably utilize data available from a Federal, State, or
other source, or

(2) Determine the design flood elevation in accordance with accepted hydrologic and
hydraulic engineering techniques. Such analyses shall be performed and sealed by a
licensed professional engineer. Studies, analyses, and computations shall be
submitted in sufficient detail to allow review and approval by the Floodplain
Administrator. The accuracy of data submitted for such determination shall be the
responsibility of the applicant.

It shall be the responsibility of the Floodplain Administrator to verify that the applicant’s
proposed Best Available Flood Hazard Data Area and the Local Design Flood Elevation in any
development permit accurately applies the best available flood hazard data and methodologies
for determining flood hazard areas and design elevations described in 102.2 and 102.3
respectively. This information shall be provided to the Construction Official and documented
according to Section131-27.

131-20 Requirement to submit new technical data. Base Flood Elevations may increase or
decrease resulting from natural changes (e.g. erosion, accretion, channel migration, subsidence,
uplift) or man-made physical changes (e.g. dredging, filling, excavation) affecting flooding
conditions. As soon as practicable, but not later than six months after the date of a man-made
change or when information about a natural change becomes available, the Floodplain
Administrator shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator of the changes by submitting
technical or scientific data in accordance with Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations Section
65.3. Such a submission is necessary so that upon confirmation of those physical changes
affecting flooding conditions, risk premium rates and floodplain management requirements will
be based upon current data.

131-21 Activities in riverine flood hazard areas. Inriverine flood hazard areas where design
flood elevations are specified but floodways have not been designated, the Floodplain
Administrator shall not permit any new construction, substantial improvement or other
development, including the placement of fill, unless the applicant submits an engineering
analysis prepared by a licensed professional engineer that demonstrates that the cumulative
effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated flood
hazard area encroachment, will not increase the design flood elevation more than 0.2 feet at any
point within the community.



131-22  Floodway encroachment. Prior to issuing a permit for any floodway
encroachment, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other
development or land- disturbing-activity, the Floodplain Administrator shall require
submission of a certification prepared by a licensed professional engineer, along with
supporting technical data, that demonstrates that such development will not cause any
increase in the base flood level.

A. Floodway revisions. A floodway encroachment that increases the level of the base
flood is authorized if the applicant has applied for a Conditional Letter of Map
Revision (CLOMR) to the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and has received the
approval of FEMA.

131-23  Watercourse alteration. Prior to issuing a permit for any alteration or relocation of
any watercourse, the Floodplain Administrator shall require the applicant to provide notification
of the proposal to the appropriate authorities of all adjacent government jurisdictions, as well as
the NJDEP Bureau of Flood Engineering and the Division of Land Resource Protection. A
copy of the notification shall be maintained in the permit records and submitted to FEMA.

b. Engineering analysis. The Floodplain Administrator shall require submission of an
engineering analysis prepared by a licensed professional engineer, demonstrating that
the flood-carrying capacity of the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will
be maintained, neither increased nor decreased. Such watercourses shall be maintained
in a manner that preserves the channel's flood-carrying capacity.

131-24  Alterations in coastal areas. The excavation or alteration of sand dunes is governed
by the New Jersey Coastal Zone Management (CZM) rules, N.J.A.C. 7:7. Prior to issuing a
flood damage prevention permit for any alteration of sand dunes in coastal high hazard areas and
Coastal A Zones, the Floodplain Administrator shall require that a New Jersey CZM permit be
obtained and included in the flood damage prevention permit application. The applicant shall
also provide documentation of any engineering analysis, prepared by a licensed professional
engineer, that demonstrates that the proposed alteration will not increase the potential for flood
damage.

131-25 Development in riparian zones All development in Riparian Zones as described in
N.J.A.C. 7:13 is prohibited by this ordinance unless the applicant has received an individual or
general permit or has complied with the requirements of a permit by rule or permit by
certification from NJDEP Division of Land Resource Protection prior to application for a
floodplain development permit and the project is compliant with all other Floodplain
Development provisions of this ordinance. The width of the riparian zone can range between 50
and 300 feet and is determined by the attributes of the waterbody and designated in the New
Jersey Surface Water Quality Standards N.J.A.C. 7:9B. The portion of the riparian zone located
outside of a regulated water is measured landward from the top of bank. Applicants can request a
verification of the riparian zone limits or a permit applicability determination to determine State
permit requirements under N.J.A.C. 7:13 from the NJDEP Division of Land Resource Protection.



131-26  Substantial improvement and substantial damage determinations. When buildings
and structures are damaged due to any cause including but not limited to man-made, structural,
electrical, mechanical, or natural hazard events, or are determined to be unsafe as described in
N.J.A.C. 5:23; and for applications for building permits to improve buildings and structures,
including alterations, movement, repair, additions, rehabilitations, renovations, ordinary
maintenance and minor work, substantial improvements, repairs of substantial damage, and any
other improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in
coordination with the Construction Official, shall:

(1) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain a professional appraisal
prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the market value of the building or
structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair,
the market value of the building or structure shall be the market value before the
damage occurred and before any repairs are made.

(2) Determine and include the costs of all ordinary maintenance and minor work, as
discussed in Section 131-5, performed in the floodplain regulated by this ordinance in
addition to the costs of those improvements regulated by the Construction Official in
substantial damage and substantial improvement calculations.

(3) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair the damaged building
to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs,
where applicable, to the market value of the building or structure.

(4) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial
improvement or repair of substantial damage.

(5) Notify the applicant in writing when it is determined that the work constitutes
substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the
flood resistant construction requirements of the building code is required and notify
the applicant in writing when it is determined that work does not constitute substantial
improvement or repair of substantial damage. The Floodplain Administrator shall also
provide all letters documenting substantial damage and compliance with flood resistant
construction requirements of the building code to the NJDEP Bureau of Flood
Engineering.

131-27  Department records. In addition to the requirements of the building code and these
regulations, and regardless of any limitation on the period required for retention of public
records, the Floodplain Administrator shall maintain and permanently keep and make available
for public inspection all records that are necessary for the administration of these regulations and
the flood provisions of the Uniform Construction Code, including Flood Insurance Studies,
Flood Insurance Rate Maps; documents from FEMA that amend or revise FIRMs; NJDEP
delineations, records of issuance of permits and denial of permits; records of ordinary
maintenance and minor work, determinations of whether proposed work constitutes substantial
improvement or repair of substantial damage; required certifications and documentation
specified by the Uniform Construction Code and these regulations including as-built Elevation
Certificates; notifications to adjacent communities, FEMA, and the State related to alterations of
watercourses; assurance that the flood carrying capacity of altered waterways will be
maintained; documentation related to variances, including justification for issuance or denial;
and records of enforcement actions taken pursuant to these regulations and the flood resistant



provisions of the Uniform Construction Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall also record
the required elevation, determination method, and base flood elevation source used to determine
the Local Design Flood Elevation in the floodplain development permit.

131-28 Liability. The Floodplain Administrator and any employee charged with the
enforcement of these regulations, while acting for the jurisdiction in good faith and without
malice in the discharge of the duties required by these regulations or other pertinent law or
ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered liable personally and is hereby relieved from personal
liability for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of any act or by reason of an
act or omission in the discharge of official duties. Any suit instituted against an officer or
employee because of an act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful discharge of
duties and under the provisions of these regulations shall be defended by legal representative of
the jurisdiction until the final termination of the proceedings. The Floodplain Administrator and
any subordinate shall not be liable for cost in any action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in
pursuance of the provisions of these regulations.

ARTICLE IV PERMITS

131-29 Permits Required. Any person, owner or authorized agent who intends to conduct any
development in a flood hazard area shall first make application to the Floodplain Administrator
and shall obtain the required permit. Depending on the nature and extent of proposed development
that includes a building or structure, the Floodplain Administrator may determine that a floodplain
development permit or approval is required in addition to a building permit.

131-30 Application for permit. The applicant shall file an application in writing on a
form furnished by the Floodplain Administrator. Such application shall:

(1) ldentify and describe the developmentto be covered by the permit.

(2) Describe the land on which the proposed development is to be conducted by legal
description, street address or similar description that will readily identify and
definitively locate the site.

(3) Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed development is intended.

(4) Be accompanied by a site plan and construction documents as specified in Article V of
these regulations, grading and filling plans and other information deemed appropriate
by the Floodplain Administrator.

(5) State the valuation of the proposed work, including the valuation of ordinary maintenance
and minor work.

(6) Be signed by the applicant or the applicant's authorized agent.

131-31 Validity of permit. The issuance of a permit under these regulations or the Uniform
Construction Code shall not be construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any violation of this
appendix or any other ordinance of the jurisdiction. The issuance of a permit based on submitted
documents and information shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from requiring the
correction of errors. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to prevent occupancy or use of a
structure or site which is in violation of these regulations or other ordinances of this jurisdiction.



131-32 Expiration. A permit shall become invalid when the proposed development is not
commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or when the work authorized is suspended or
abandoned for a period of 180 days after the work commences. Extensions shall be requested in
writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to grant,
in writing, one or more extensions of time, for periods not more than 180 days each.

131-33 Suspension or revocation. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to suspend or
revoke a permit issued under these regulations wherever the permit is issued in error or on the
basis of incorrect, inaccurate or incomplete information, or in violation of any ordinance or code
of this jurisdiction.

ARTICLE V SITE PLANS AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

131-34 Information for development in flood hazard areas. The site plan or construction
documents for any development subject to the requirements of these regulations shall be drawn
to scale and shall include, as applicable to the proposed development:

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zone(s), base
flood elevation(s), and ground elevations when necessary for review of the
proposed development. For buildings that are located in more than one flood
hazard area, the elevation and provisions associated with the most restrictive flood
hazard area shall apply.

(2) Where base flood elevations or floodway data are not included on the FIRM or in
the Flood Insurance Study, they shall be established in accordance with Section
131-35.

(3) Where the parcel on which the proposed development will take place will have more
than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and base flood elevations are not included on
the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, such elevations shall be established in
accordance with Section 131-35(3) of theseregulations.

(4) Location of the proposed activity and proposed structures, and locations of existing
buildings and structures; in coastal high hazard areas and Coastal A zones, new
buildings shall be located landward of the reach of mean high tide.

(5) Location, extent, amount, and proposed final grades of any filling, grading,
or excavation.

(6) Where the placement of fill is proposed, the amount, type, and source of fill material,
compaction specifications; a description of the intended purpose of the fill areas; and
evidence that the proposed fill areas are the minimum necessary to achieve the intended
purpose. The applicant shall provide an engineering certification confirming that the
proposal meets the flood storage displacement limitations of N.J.A.C. 7:13.

(7) Extent of any proposed alteration of sand dunes.
(8) Existing and proposed alignment of any proposed alteration of a watercourse.

(9) Floodproofing certifications, V Zone and Breakaway Wall Certifications, Operations
and Maintenance Plans, Warning and Evacuation Plans and other documentation



required pursuant to FEMA publications.

The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to waive the submission of site plans, construction
documents, and other data that are required by these regulations but that are not required to be
prepared by a registered design professional when it is found that the nature of the proposed
development is such that the review of such submissions is not necessary to ascertain
compliance.

131-35 Information in flood hazard areas without base flood elevations (approximate
Zone A). Where flood hazard areas are delineated on the effective or preliminary FIRM and base
flood elevation data have not been provided, the applicant shall consult with the Floodplain
Administrator to determine whether to:

(1) Use the Approximation Method (Method 5) described in N.J.A.C. 7:13 in conjunction
with Appendix 1 of the FHACA to determine the required flood elevation.

(2) Obtain, review, and reasonably utilize data available from a Federal, State or other
source when those data are deemed acceptable to the Floodplain Administrator to
reasonably reflect flooding conditions.

(3) Determine the base flood elevation in accordance with accepted hydrologic and
hydraulic engineering techniques according to Method 6 as described in N.J.A.C. 7:13.
Such analyses shall be performed and sealed by a licensed professional engineer.

Studies, analyses, and computations shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow review
and approval by the Floodplain Administrator prior to floodplain development permit
issuance. The accuracy of data submitted for such determination shall be the responsibility
of the applicant. Where the data are to be used to support a Letter of Map Change
(LOMC) from FEMA, the applicant shall be responsible for satisfying the submittal
requirements and pay the processing fees.

131-36 Analyses and certifications by a Licensed Professional Engineer. As applicable to
the location and nature of the proposed development activity, and in addition to the
requirements of this section, the applicant shall have the following analyses signed and sealed by
a licensed professional engineer for submission with the site plan and constructiondocuments:

(1) For development activities proposed to be located in a regulatory floodway, a
floodway encroachment analysis that demonstrates that the encroachment of the
proposed development will not cause any increase in base flood elevations; where the
applicant proposes to undertake development activities that do increase base flood
elevations, the applicant shall submit such analysis to FEMA as specified in Section
131-37 of these regulations and shall submit the Conditional Letter of Map Revision, if
issued by FEMA, with the site plan and constructiondocuments.

(2) For development activities proposed to be located in a riverine flood hazard area
where base flood elevations are included in the FIS or FIRM but floodways have not
been designated, hydrologic and hydraulic analyses that demonstrate that the
cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing
and anticipated flood hazard area encroachments will not increase the base flood
elevation more than 0.2 feet at any point within the jurisdiction. This requirement does



not apply in isolated flood hazard areas not connected to a riverine flood hazard area
or in flood hazard areas identified as Zone AO or Zone AH.

(3) For alteration of a watercourse, an engineering analysis prepared in accordance with
standard engineering practices which demonstrates that the flood-carrying capacity of
the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will not be decreased, and
certification that the altered watercourse shall be maintained, neither increasing nor
decreasing the channel's flood-carrying capacity. The applicant shall submit the
analysis to FEMA as specified in Section 131-37 of these regulations. The applicant
shall notify the chief executive officer of all affected adjacent jurisdictions, the
NJDEP’s Bureau of Flood Engineering and the Division of Land Resource Protection;
and shall provide documentation of such notifications.

(4) For activities that propose to alter sand dunes in coastal high hazard areas (Zone V)
and Coastal A Zones, an engineering analysis that demonstrates that the proposed
alteration will not increase the potential for flood damage and documentation of the
issuance of a New Jersey Coastal Zone Management permit under N.J.A.C. 7:7.

(5) For analyses performed using Methods 5 and 6 (as described in N.J.A.C. 7:13) in
flood hazard zones without base flood elevations (approximate A zones).

131-37 Submission of additional data. When additional hydrologic, hydraulic or other
engineering data, studies, and additional analyses are submitted to support an application, the
applicant has the right to seek a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) from FEMA to change the base
flood elevations, change floodway boundaries, or change boundaries of flood hazard areas shown
on FIRMs, and to submit such data to FEMA for such purposes. The analyses shall be prepared
by a licensed professional engineer in a format required by FEMA. Submittal requirements and
processing fees shall be the responsibility of the applicant.

ARTICLE VI INSPECTIONS

131-37 General. Development for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection.
Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be construed to be an approval of a violation of
the provisions of these regulations or the building code. Inspections presuming to give
authority to violate or cancel the provisions of these regulations or the building code or other
ordinances shall not bevalid.

131-38 Inspections of development. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect all
development in flood hazard areas authorized by issuance of permits under these regulations.
The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect flood hazard areas from time to time to determine if
development is undertaken without issuance of a permit.

131-39 Buildings and structures. The Construction Official shall make or cause to be
made, inspections for buildings and structures in flood hazard areas authorized by permit
in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code, N.J.A.C. 5:23.

1) Lowest floor elevation. Upon placement of the lowest floor, including the



basement, and prior to further vertical construction, certification of the elevation
required in Section 131-73 shall be submitted to the Construction Official on an
Elevation Certificate.

2) Lowest horizontal structural member. In V zones and Coastal A zones, upon
placement of the lowest floor, including the basement, and prior to further
vertical construction, certification of the elevation required in Section 131-73
shall be submitted to the Construction Official on an Elevation Certificate.

3) Installation of attendant utilities (electrical, heating, ventilating, air-
conditioning, and other service equipment) and sanitary facilities elevated as
discussed in Section 131-73.

4) Final inspection. Prior to the final inspection, certification of the elevation required in
Section 131-73 shall be submitted to the Construction Official on an Elevation
Certificate.

131-40 Manufactured homes. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect manufactured
homes that are installed or replaced in flood hazard areas to determine compliance with the
requirements of these regulations and the conditions of the issued permit. Upon placement of a
manufactured home, certification of the elevation of the lowest floor shall be submitted on an
Elevation Certificate to the Floodplain Administrator prior to the final inspection.

ARTICLE VII VARIANCES

131-41 General. The Township Land Development Board shall hear and decide requests for
variances. The Township Land Development Board shall base its determination on technical
justifications submitted by applicants, the considerations for issuance in Section 131-45, the
conditions of issuance set forth in Section 131-46, and the comments and recommendations of
the Floodplain Administrator and, as applicable, the Construction Official. The Township
Land Development Board has the right to attach such conditions to variances as it deems
necessary to further the purposes and objectives of these regulations.

131-42 Historic structures. A variance to the substantial improvement requirements of
this ordinance is authorized provided that the repair or rehabilitation of a historic structure is
completed according to N.J.A.C. 5:23-6.33, Section 1612 of the International Building Code
and R322 of the International Residential Code, the repair or rehabilitation will not preclude
the structure’s continued designation as a historic structure, the structure meets the definition
of the historic structure as described by this ordinance, and the variance is

the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

131-43 Functionally dependent uses. A variance is authorized to be issued for the
construction or substantial improvement necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent
use provided the variance is the minimum necessary to allow the construction or substantial
improvement, and that all due consideration has been given to use of methods and materials



that minimize flood damage during the base flood and create no additional threats to public
safety.

131-44 Restrictions in floodways. A variance shall not be issued for any proposed
development in a floodway when any increase in flood levels would result during the base
flood discharge, as evidenced by the applicable analysis and certification required in Section
131-36(1) of these regulations.

131-45 Considerations. In reviewing requests for variances, all technical
evaluations, all relevant factors, all other portions of these regulations, and the following
shall be considered:

(1) The danger that materials and debris may be swept onto other lands resulting in
further injury or damage.

(2) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage.

(3) The susceptibility of the proposed development, including contents, to flood damage
and the effect of such damage on current and future owners.

(4) The importance of the services provided by the proposed development to
the community.

(5) The availability of alternate locations for the proposed development that are not
subject to flooding or erosion and the necessity of a waterfront location, where
applicable.

(6) The compatibility of the proposed development with existing and
anticipated development.

(7) The relationship of the proposed development to the comprehensive plan and
floodplain management program for that area.

(8) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and
emergency vehicles.

(9) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and debris and sediment
transport of the floodwater and the effects of wave action, where applicable, expected
at the site.

(10) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions
including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas,
electrical and water systems, streets, and bridges.

131-46 Conditions for issuance. Variances shall only be issued upon:

(1) Submission by the applicant of a showing of good and sufficient cause that the
unique characteristics of the size, configuration or topography of the site limit
compliance with any provision of these regulations or renders the elevation
standards of the building code inappropriate.

(2) A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional



hardship due to the physical characteristics of the land that render the lot
undevelopable.

(3) A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood
heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, nor create
nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public or conflict with existing local
laws or ordinances.

(4) A determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the
flood hazard, to affordrelief.

(5) Notification to the applicant in writing over the signature of the Floodplain
Administrator that the issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base
flood level will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts
as high as $25 for
$100 of insurance coverage, and that such construction below the base flood level
increases risks to life and property.

ARTICLE VIII VIOLATIONS

131-47 Violations. Any development in any flood hazard area that is being performed without
an issued permit or that is in conflict with an issued permit shall be deemed a violation. A
building or structure without the documentation of elevation of the lowest floor, the lowest
horizontal structural member if in a \V or Coastal A Zone, other required design certifications,
or other evidence of compliance required by the building code is presumed to be a violation
until such time as that documentation is provided.

131-48 Authority. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to serve notices of violation or
stop work orders to owners of property involved, to the owner’s agent, or to the person or
persons doing the work for development that is not within the scope of the Uniform Construction
Code, but is regulated by these regulations and that is determined to be a violation.

131-49 Unlawful continuance. Any person who shall continue any work after having

been served with a notice of violation or a stop work order, except such work as that person

is directed to perform to remove or remedy a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject

to penalties as prescribed by N.J.S.A. 40:49-5 as appropriate.

131-50 Review Period to Correct Violations. A 30-day period shall be given to the
property owner as an opportunity to cure or abate the condition. The property owner shall
also be afforded an opportunity for a hearing before the court for an independent
determination concerning the violation. Subsequent to the expiration of the 30-day period,
a fine greater than $1,250.00 may be imposed if a court has not determined otherwise or,
upon reinspection of the property, it is determined that the abatement has not been
substantially completed.

ARTICLE IX DEFINITIONS

131-51 General. The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of these regulations,



have the meanings shown herein. Other terms are defined in the Uniform Construction Code
N.J.A.C. 5:23 and terms are defined where used in the International Residential Code and
International Building Code (rather than in the definitions Article). Where terms are not
defined, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context implies.

131-52 Definitions

30 DAY PERIOD — The period of time prescribed by N.J.S.A. 40:49-5 in which a property
owner is afforded the opportunity to correct zoning and solid waste disposal after a notice of
violation pertaining to this ordinance has been issued.

100 YEAR FLOOD ELEVATION - Elevation of flooding having a 1% annual chance of being
equaled or exceeded in a given year which is also referred to as the Base Flood Elevation.

500 YEAR FLOOD ELEVATION - Elevation of flooding having a 0.2% annual chance of
being equaled or exceeded in a given year.

A ZONES — Areas of ‘Special Flood Hazard in which the elevation of the surface water
resulting from a flood that has a 1% annual chance of equaling or exceeding the Base Flood
Elevation (BFE) in any given year shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) zones A,
AE, AH, A1-A30, AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/A1- A30, AR/AH, and AR/AO. When used in
reference to the development of a structure in this ordinance, A Zones are not inclusive of
Coastal A Zones because of the higher building code requirements for Coastal A Zones.

AH ZONES- Areas subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance shallow flooding (usually
areas of ponding) where average depths are between one and three feet. Base Flood Elevations
(BFESs) derived from detailed hydraulic analyses are shown in this zone.

AO ZONES - Areas subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance shallow flooding
(usually sheet flow on sloping terrain) where average depths are between one and three feet.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE — Accessory structures are also referred to as appurtenant
structures. An accessory structure is a structure which is on the same parcel of property as a
principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. For
example, a residential structure may have a detached garage or storage shed for garden tools as
accessory structures. Other examples of accessory structures include gazebos, picnic pavilions,
boathouses, small pole barns, storage sheds, and similar buildings.

AGRICULTURAL STRUCTURE - A structure used solely for agricultural purposes in which
the use is exclusively in connection with the production, harvesting, storage, drying, or raising
of agricultural commodities, including the raising of livestock. Communities must require that
new construction or substantial improvements of agricultural structures be elevated or
floodproofed to or above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) as any other nonresidential building.
Under some circumstances it may be appropriate to wet-floodproof certain types of agricultural
structures when located in wide, expansive floodplains through issuance of a variance. This
should only be done for structures used for temporary storage of equipment or crops or



temporary shelter for livestock and only in circumstances where it can be demonstrated that
agricultural structures can be designed in such a manner that results in minimal damage to the
structure and its contents and will create no additional threats to public safety. New
construction or substantial improvement of livestock confinement buildings, poultry houses,
dairy operations, similar livestock operations and any structure that represents more than a
minimal investment must meet the elevation or dry-floodproofing requirements of 44 CFR
60.3(c)(3).

AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING — A designated Zone AO, AH, AR/AO or AR/AH (or VO)
on a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a one percent or greater annual
chance of flooding to an average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does
not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flow may be evident.
Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow. AREA OF SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD — see SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

ALTERATION OF A WATERCOURSE — A dam, impoundment, channel relocation, change
in channel alignment, channelization, or change in cross-sectional area of the channel or the
channel capacity, or any other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or change
the direction and/or velocity of the riverine flow of water during conditions of the base flood.

ASCE 7 — The standard for the Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures,
referenced by the building code and developed and published by the American Society of Civil
Engineers, Reston, VA. which includes but is not limited to methodology and equations
necessary for determining structural and flood-related design requirements and determining the
design requirements for structures that may experience a combination of loads including those
from natural hazards. Flood related equations include those for determining erosion, scour,
lateral, vertical, hydrostatic, hydrodynamic, buoyancy, breaking wave, and debris impact.

ASCE 24 — The standard for Flood Resistant Design and Construction, referenced by the
building code and developed and published by the American Society of Civil Engineers,
Reston, VA. References to ASCE 24 shall mean ASCE 24-14 or the most recent version of
ASCE 24 adopted in the UCC Code [N.J.A.C. 5:23].

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION (BFE) — The water surface elevation resulting from a flood that
has a 1-percent or greater chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year, as shown on a
published Flood Insurance Study (FIS), or preliminary flood elevation guidance from FEMA.
May also be referred to as the “100-year flood elevation™.

BASEMENT — Any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all
sides.

BEST AVAILABLE FLOOD HAZARD DATA - The most recent available preliminary flood
risk guidance FEMA has provided. The Best Available Flood Hazard Data may be depicted on
but not limited to Advisory Flood Hazard Area Maps, Work Maps, or Preliminary FIS and
FIRM.



BEST AVAILABLE FLOOD HAZARD DATA AREA- The areal mapped extent associated
with the most recent available preliminary flood risk guidance FEMA has provided. The Best
Available Flood Hazard Data may be depicted on but not limited to Advisory Flood Hazard
Area Maps, Work Maps, or Preliminary FIS and FIRM.

BEST AVAILABLE FLOOD HAZARD DATA ELEVATION - The most recent available
preliminary flood elevation guidance FEMA has provided. The Best Available Flood Hazard
Data may be depicted on but not limited to Advisory Flood Hazard Area Maps, Work Maps, or
Preliminary FIS and FIRM.

BREAKAWAY WALLS — Any type of wall subject to flooding that is not required to provide
structural support to a building or other structure and that is designed and constructed such that,
below the Local Design Flood Elevation, it will collapse under specific lateral loads such that
(1) it allows the free passage of floodwaters, and (2) it does not damage the structure or
supporting foundation system. Certification in the VV Zone Certificate of the design, plans, and
specifications by a licensed design professional that these walls are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice is required as part of the permit application for new and substantially
improved V Zone and Coastal A Zone structures. A completed certification must be submitted
at permit application.

BUILDING — Per the FHACA, “Building” means a structure enclosed with exterior walls or
fire walls, erected and framed of component structural parts, designed for the housing, shelter,
enclosure, and support of individuals, animals, or property of any kind. A building may have a
temporary or permanent foundation. A building that is intended for regular human occupation
and/or residence is considered a habitable building.

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION - A Conditional Letter of Map Revision
(CLOMR) is FEMA's comment on a proposed project that would, upon construction, affect the
hydrologic or hydraulic characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification
of the existing regulatory floodway, the effective Base Flood Elevations (BFES), or the Special
Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). The letter does not revise an effective NFIP map, it indicates
whether the project, if built as proposed, would be recognized by FEMA. FEMA charges a fee
for processing a CLOMR to recover the costs associated with the review that is described in the
Letter of Map Change (LOMC) process. Building permits cannot be issued based on a CLOMR,
because a CLOMR does not change the NFIP map.

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION - FILL -- A Conditional Letter of Map
Revision - Fill (CLOMR-F) is FEMA's comment on a proposed project involving the placement
of fill outside of the regulatory floodway that would, upon construction, affect the hydrologic or
hydraulic characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing
regulatory floodway, the effective Base Flood Elevations (BFES), or the Special Flood Hazard
Area (SFHA). The letter does not revise an effective NFIP map, it indicates whether the project,
if built as proposed, would be recognized by FEMA. FEMA charges a fee for processing a
CLOMR to recover the costs associated with the review that is described in the Letter of Map
Change (LOMC) process. Building permits cannot be issued based on a CLOMR, because a
CLOMR does not change the NFIP map.



CRITICAL BUILDING — Per the FHACA, “Critical Building” means that:

a. Itis essential to maintaining continuity of vital government operations and/or supporting
emergency response, sheltering, and medical care functions before, during, and after a flood,
such as a hospital, medical clinic, police station, fire station, emergency response center, or
public shelter; or

b. It serves large numbers of people who may be unable to leave the facility through their own
efforts, thereby hindering or preventing safe evacuation of the building during a flood event,
such as a school, college, dormitory, jail or detention facility, day care center, assisted living
facility, or nursing home.

DEVELOPMENT — Any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including
but not limited to, buildings or other structures, tanks, temporary structures, temporary or
permanent storage of materials, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavations, drilling
operations and other land-disturbing activities.

DRY FLOODPROOFING — A combination of measures that results in a non-residential
structure, including the attendant utilities and equipment as described in the latest version of
ASCE 24, being watertight with all elements substantially impermeable and with structural
components having the capacity to resist flood loads.

ELEVATED BUILDING — A building that has no basement and that has its lowest elevated
floor raised above ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or
columns. Solid perimeter foundations walls are not an acceptable means of elevating buildings
in V and VE Zones.

ELEVATION CERTIFICATE — An administrative tool of the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP) that can be used to provide elevation information, to determine the proper
insurance premium rate, and to support an application for a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA)
or Letter of Map Revision based on fill (LOMR-F).

ENCROACHMENT - The placement of fill, excavation, buildings, permanent structures or
other

development into a flood hazard area which may impede or alter the flow capacity of riverine
flood hazard areas.

FEMA PUBLICATIONS — Any publication authored or referenced by FEMA related to
building science, building safety, or floodplain management related to the National Flood
Insurance Program. Publications shall include but are not limited to technical bulletins, desk
references, and American Society of Civil Engineers Standards documents including ASCE 24.

FLOOD OR FLOODING

a. A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land
areas from:



=

The overflow of inland or tidal waters.

The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

3. Mudslides (I.e. mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined in (a)
(2) of this definition and are akin to a river or liquid and flowing mud on the surfaces of
normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a current of water and deposited
along the path of the current.

b. The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a
result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated
cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of
water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as flash
flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event
which results in flooding as defined in paragraph (a)(1) of this definition.

N

FLOOD HAZARD AREA DESIGN FLOOD ELEVATION - Per the FHACA, the peak water
surface elevation that will occur in a water during the flood hazard area design flood. This
elevation is determined via available flood mapping adopted by the State, flood mapping
published by FEMA (including effective flood mapping dated on or after January 31, 1980, or
any more recent advisory, preliminary, or pending flood mapping; whichever results in higher
flood elevations, wider floodway limits, greater flow rates, or indicates a change from an A
zone to a V zone or coastal A zone), approximation, or calculation pursuant to the Flood Hazard
Area Control Act Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:13-3.1 — 3.6 and is typically higher than FEMA’s base
flood elevation. A water that has a drainage area measuring less than 50 acres does not possess,
and is not assigned, a flood hazard area design flood elevation.

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) — The official map on which the Federal
Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the
risk premium zones applicable to the community.

FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY (FIS) — The official report in which the Federal Emergency
Management Agency has provided flood profiles, as well as the Flood Insurance Rate Map(s)
and the water surface elevation of the base flood.

FLOODPLAIN OR FLOOD PRONE AREA - Any land area susceptible to being inundated by
water from any source. See "Flood or flooding."

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS — Zoning ordinances, subdivision
regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a floodplain
ordinance, grading ordinance, and erosion control ordinance) and other applications of police
power. The term describes such State or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which
provide standards for the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction.

FLOODPROOFING — Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real
property, water and sanitary facilities, structures, and their contents.

FLOODPROOFING CERTIFICATE — Certification by a licensed design professional that the



design and methods of construction for floodproofing a non-residential structure are in
accordance with accepted standards of practice to a proposed height above the structure’s lowest
adjacent grade that meets or exceeds the Local Design Flood Elevation. A completed
floodproofing certificate is required at permit application.

FLOODWAY - The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that
must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water
surface elevation more than 0.2 foot.

FREEBOARD — A factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes of
floodplain management. “Freeboard” tends to compensate for the many unknown factors that
could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and
floodway conditions, such as wave action, bridge openings, and the hydrological effect of
urbanization of the watershed.

FUNCTIONALLY DEPENDENT USE — A use that cannot perform its intended purpose unless
it is located or carried out in close proximity to water, including only docking facilities, port
facilities necessary for the loading or unloading of cargo or passengers, and shipbuilding and
ship repair facilities. The term does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing
facilities.

HABITABLE BUILDING- Pursuant to the FHACA Rules (N.J.A.C. 7:13), means a building
that is intended for regular human occupation and/or residence. Examples of a habitable
building include a single-family home, duplex, multi-residence building, or critical building; a
commercial building such as a retail store, restaurant, office building, or gymnasium; an
accessory structure that is regularly occupied, such as a garage, barn, or workshop; mobile and
manufactured homes, and trailers intended for human residence, which are set on a foundation
and/or connected to utilities, such as in a mobile home park (not including campers and
recreational vehicles); and any other building that is regularly occupied, such as a house of
worship, community center, or meeting hall, or animal shelter that includes regular human
access and occupation. Examples of a non-habitable building include a bus stop shelter, utility
building, storage shed, self-storage unit, construction trailer, or an individual shelter for animals
such as a doghouse or outdoor kennel.

HARDSHIP — As related to Article VII of this ordinance, meaning the exceptional hardship that
would result from a failure to grant the requested variance. The Township Land Development
Board requires that the variance be exceptional, unusual, and peculiar to the property involved.
Mere economic or financial hardship alone is not exceptional. Inconvenience, aesthetic
considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences, or the disapproval of one's neighbors
likewise cannot, as a rule, qualify as an exceptional hardship. All of these problems can be
resolved through other means without granting a variance, even if the alternative is more
expensive, or requires the property owner to build elsewhere or put the parcel to a different use
than originally intended.

HIGHEST ADJACENT GRADE - The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed or existing walls of a structure.



HISTORIC STRUCTURE — Any structure that is:

a. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

b. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined
by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

c. Individually listed on a State inventory of historic places in States with historic preservation
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or

d. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either:

1. By an approved State program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or
2. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in States without approved programs.

LAWFULLY EXISTING — Per the FHACA, means an existing fill, structure and/or use, which

meets all Federal, State, and local laws, and which is not in violation of the FHACA because it

was established:

a. Prior to January 31, 1980; or

b. On or after January 31, 1980, in accordance with the requirements of the FHACA as it
existed at the time the fill, structure and/or use was established.

Note: Substantially damaged properties and substantially improved properties that have not
been elevated are not considered “lawfully existing” for the purposes of the NFIP. This
definition is included in this ordinance to clarify the applicability of any more stringent
statewide floodplain management standards required under the FHACA.

LETTER OF MAP AMENDMENT - A Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) is an official
amendment, by letter, to an effective National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) map that is
requested through the Letter of Map Change (LOMC) process. A LOMA establishes a
property's location in relation to the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). LOMAS are usually
issued because a property has been inadvertently mapped as being in the floodplain but is
actually on natural high ground above the base flood elevation. Because a LOMA officially
amends the effective NFIP map, it is a public record that the community must maintain. Any
LOMA should be noted on the community's master flood map and filed by panel number in an
accessible location.

LETTER OF MAP CHANGE — The Letter of Map Change (LOMC) process is a service
provided by FEMA for a fee that allows the public to request a change in flood zone designation
in an Area of Special Flood Hazard on an Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). Conditional
Letters of Map Revision, Conditional Letters of Map Revision — Fill, Letters of Map Revision,
Letters of Map Revision-Fill, and Letters of Map Amendment are requested through the Letter
of Map Change (LOMC) process.

LETTER OF MAP REVISION - A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) is FEMA's modification to



an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). Letter of Map Revisions are generally based
on the implementation of physical measures that affect the hydrologic or hydraulic
characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing regulatory
floodway, the effective Base Flood Elevations (BFESs), or the Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA). The LOMR officially revises the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and sometimes
the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) report, and when appropriate, includes a description of the
modifications. The LOMR is generally accompanied by an annotated copy of the affected
portions of the FIRM or FIS report. Because a LOMR officially revises the effective NFIP
map, it is a public record that the community must maintain. Any LOMR should be noted on the
community's master flood map and filed by panel number in an accessible location.

LETTER OF MAP REVISION — FILL -- A Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) is
FEMA's modification of the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) shown on the Flood Insurance
Rate Map (FIRM) based on the placement of fill outside the existing regulatory floodway may
be initiated through the Letter of Map Change (LOMC) Process. Because a LOMR-F officially
revises the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) map, it is a public record that the
community must maintain. Any LOMR-F should be noted on the community’s master flood
map and filed by panel number in an accessible location.

LICENSED DESIGN PROFESSIONAL — Licensed design professional shall refer to either a
New Jersey Licensed Professional Engineer, licensed by the New Jersey State Board of
Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors or a New Jersey Licensed Architect, licensed by the
New Jersey State Board of Architects.

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER - A licensed professional engineer shall refer to
individuals licensed by the New Jersey State Board of Professional Engineers and Land
Surveyors.

LOCAL DESIGN FLOOD ELEVATION (LDFE) — The elevation reflective of the most recent
available preliminary flood elevation guidance FEMA has provided as depicted on but not
limited to Advisory Flood Hazard Area Maps, Work Maps, or Preliminary FIS and FIRM which
is also inclusive of freeboard specified by the New Jersey Flood Hazard Area Control Act and
Uniform Construction Codes and any additional freeboard specified in a community’s
ordinance. In no circumstances shall a project’s LDFE be lower than a permit-specified Flood
Hazard Area Design Flood Elevation or a valid NJDEP Flood Hazard Area Verification

Letter plus the freeboard as required in ASCE 24 and the effective FEMA Base Flood
Elevation.

LOWEST ADJACENT GRADE — The lowest point of ground, patio, or sidewalk slab
immediately next a structure, except in AO Zones where it is the natural grade elevation.

LOWEST FLOOR — In A Zones, the lowest floor is the top surface of the lowest floor of the
lowest enclosed area (including basement). In VV Zones and coastal A Zones, the bottom of the
lowest horizontal structural member of a building is the lowest floor. An unfinished or flood
resistant enclosure, usable solely for the parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an
area other than a basement is not considered a building's lowest floor provided that such



enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of other applicable non-elevation
design requirements of these regulations.

MANUFACTURED HOME — A structure that is transportable in one or more sections, eight
(8) feet or more in width and greater than four hundred (400) square feet, built on a permanent
chassis, designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required
utilities, and constructed to the Federal Manufactured Home Construction and Safety Standards
and rules and regulations promulgated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. The term also includes mobile homes, park trailers, travel trailers and similar
transportable structures that are placed on a site for 180 consecutive days or longer.

MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION — A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of
land divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

MARKET VALUE - The price at which a property will change hands between a willing buyer
and a willing seller, neither party being under compulsion to buy or sell and both having
reasonable knowledge of relevant facts. As used in these regulations, the term refers to the
market value of buildings and structures, excluding the land and other improvements on the
parcel. Market value shall be determined by one of the following methods (1) Actual Cash
Value (replacement cost depreciated for age and quality of construction), (2) tax assessment
value adjusted to approximate market value by a factor provided by the tax assessor’s office, or
(3) established by a qualified independent appraiser.

NEW CONSTRUCTION — Structures for which the start of construction commenced on or
after the effective date of the first floodplain regulation adopted by a community; includes any
subsequent improvements to such structures. New construction includes work determined to be
a substantial improvement.

NON-RESIDENTIAL — Pursuant to ASCE 24, any building or structure or portion thereof that
is not classified as residential.

ORDINARY MAINTENANCE AND MINOR WORK — This term refers to types of work
excluded from construction permitting under N.J.A.C. 5:23 in the March 5, 2018 New Jersey
Register. Some of these types of work must be considered in determinations of substantial
improvement and substantial damage in regulated floodplains under 44 CFR 59.1. These types
of work include but are not limited to replacements of roofing, siding, interior finishes, kitchen
cabinets, plumbing fixtures and piping, HVAC and air conditioning equipment, exhaust fans,
built in appliances, electrical wiring, etc. Improvements necessary to correct existing violations
of State or local health, sanitation, or code enforcement officials which are the minimum
necessary to assure safe living conditions and improvements of historic structures as discussed
in 44 CFR 59.1 shall not be included in the determination of ordinary maintenance and minor
work.

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE — A vehicle that is built on a single chassis, 400 square feet or
less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled or



permanently towable by a light-duty truck, and designed primarily not for use as a permanent
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use. A
recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached
to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices and has no permanently
attached additions.

RESIDENTIAL — Pursuant to the ASCE 24:

a. Buildings and structures and portions thereof where people live or that are used for sleeping
purposes on a transient or non-transient basis;

b. Structures including but not limited to one- and two-family dwellings, townhouses,
condominiums, multi-family dwellings, apartments, congregate residences, boarding houses,
lodging houses, rooming houses, hotels, motels, apartment buildings, convents, monasteries,
dormitories, fraternity houses, sorority houses, vacation time-share properties; and

c. institutional facilities where people are cared for or live on a 24-hour basis in a supervised
environment, including but not limited to board and care facilities, assisted living facilities,
halfway houses, group homes, congregate care facilities, social rehabilitation facilities,
alcohol and drug centers, convalescent facilities, hospitals, nursing homes, mental hospitals,
detoxification facilities, prisons, jails, reformatories, detention centers, correctional centers,
and prerelease centers.

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL — “Solid Waste Disposal" shall mean the storage, treatment,
utilization, processing or final disposition of solid waste as described in N.J.A.C. 7:26-1.6 or the
storage of unsecured materials as described in N.J.A.C. 7:13-2.3 for a period of greater than 6
months as specified in N.J.A.C. 7:26 which have been discharged, deposited, injected, dumped,
spilled, leaked, or placed into any land or water such that such solid waste may enter the
environment or be emitted into the air or discharged into any waters, including groundwaters.

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA — The greater of the following: (1) Land in the floodplain
within a community subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year,
shown on the FIRM as Zone V, VE, V1-3-, A, AO, A1-30, AE, A99, or AH; (2) Land and the
space above that land, which lies below the peak water surface elevation of the flood hazard
area design flood for a particular water, as determined using the methods set forth in the New
Jersey Flood Hazard Area Control Act in N.J.A.C. 7:13; (3) Riparian Buffers as determined in
the New Jersey Flood Hazard Area Control Act in N.J.A.C. 7:13. Also referred to as the AREA
OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD.

START OF CONSTRUCTION — The Start of Construction is as follows:

a. For other than new construction or substantial improvements, under the Coastal
Barrier Resources Act (CBRA), this is the date the building permit was issued, provided that
the actual start of construction, repair, rehabilitation, addition, placement or other
improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first
placement of permanent construction of a building on site, such as the pouring of a slab or
footing, the installation of piles, the construction of columns or any work beyond the stage



of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured (mobile) home on a foundation. For a
substantial improvement, actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall,
ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the
external dimensions of the building.

b. For the purposes of determining whether proposed construction must meet new
requirements when National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) maps are issued or revised
and Base Flood Elevation's (BFEs) increase or zones change, the Start of Construction
includes substantial improvement, and means the date the building permit was issued,
provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition
placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start
means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as
the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any
work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a
foundation.

Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and
filling, nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include
excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. Such
development must also be permitted and must meet new requirements when National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP) maps are issued or revised and Base Flood Elevation's (BFES)
increase or zones change.

For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of
any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration
affects the external dimensions of the building.

For determining if new construction and substantial improvements within the Coastal
Barrier Resources System (CBRS) can obtain flood insurance, a different definition applies.

STRUCTURE — A walled and roofed building, a manufactured home, or a gas or liquid storage
tank that is principally above ground.

SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE — Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost
of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of
the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT — Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
improvement of a structure taking place, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the improvement. This term
includes structures which have incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the actual repair
work performed. The term does not, however, include either:

a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of State or local



health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code
enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions;
or

b. Any alteration of a "historic structure”, provided that the alteration will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a "historic structure."

UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS GROUP U BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES —
Buildings and structures of an accessory character and miscellaneous structures not classified in
any special occupancy, as described in ASCE 24.

VARIANCE — A grant of relief from the requirements of this Chapterwhich permits
construction in a manner otherwise prohibited by this Chapter where specific enforcement
would result in unnecessary hardship.

VIOLATION — A development that is not fully compliant with these regulations or the flood
provisions of the building code. A structure or other development without the elevation
certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this ordinance is
presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

WATER SURFACE ELEVATION - the height, in relation to the North American Vertical
Datum (NAVD) of 1988, (or other datum, where specified) of floods of various magnitudes and
frequencies in the flood plains of coastal or riverine areas.

WATERCOURSE. A river, creek, stream, channel, or other topographic feature in, on, through,
or over which water flows at least periodically.

WET FLOODPROOFING — Floodproofing method that relies on the use of flood damage
resistant materials and construction techniques in areas of a structure that are below the Local
Design Flood Elevation by intentionally allowing them to flood. The application of wet
floodproofing as a flood protection technique under the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP) is limited to enclosures below elevated residential and non-residential structures and to
accessory and agricultural structures that have been issued variances by the community.

ARTICLE X SUBDIVISIONS AND OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

131-53 General. Any subdivision proposal, including proposals for manufactured home parks
and subdivisions, or other proposed new development in a flood hazard area shall be reviewed
to assure that:

(1) All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flooddamage.

(2) All public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electric and water systems
are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.



(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH and
AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwater around and away
from structures.

131-54 Subdivision requirements. Where any portion of proposed subdivisions, including
manufactured home parks and subdivisions, lies within a flood hazard area, the following shall
be required:

(1) The flood hazard area, including floodways, coastal high hazard areas, and Coastal
A Zones, and base flood elevations, as appropriate, shall be delineated on tentative
subdivision plats.

(2) Residential building lots shall be provided with adequate buildable area outside
the floodway.

(3) The design criteria for utilities and facilities set forth in these regulations and
appropriate codes shall bemet.

ARTICLE XI SITE IMPROVEMENT

131-55 Encroachment in floodways. Development, land disturbing activity, and
encroachments in floodways shall not be authorized unless it has been demonstrated through
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses required in accordance with Section 131-36(1) of these
regulations, that the proposed encroachment will not result in any increase in the base flood
level during occurrence of the base flooddischarge. If Section 131-36(1) is satisfied, proposed
elevation, addition, or reconstruction of a lawfully existing structure within a floodway shall
also be in accordance with Section 131-73 of this ordinance and the floodway requirements of
N.J.A.C. 7:13.

A. Prohibited in floodways. The following are prohibited activities:

(1) The storage of unsecured materials is prohibited within a floodway pursuant to N.J.A.C.
7:13.

(2) Fill and new structures are prohibited in floodways per N.J.A.C. 7:13.

131-56 Sewer facilities. All new and replaced sanitary sewer facilities, private sewage
treatment plants (including all pumping stations and collector systems) and on-site waste
disposal systems shall be designed in accordance with the New Jersey septic system regulations
contained in N.J.A.C. 14A and N.J.A.C. 7:9A, the UCC Plumbing Subcode (N.J.A.C. 5:23) and
Chapter 7, ASCE 24, to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwater into the facilities and
discharge from the facilities into flood waters, or impairment of the facilities and systems.

131-57 Water facilities. All new and replacement water facilities shall be designed in
accordance with the New Jersey Safe Drinking Water Act (N.J.A.C. 7:10) and the provisions of
Chapter 7 ASCE 24, to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwater into the systems.



131-58 Storm drainage. Storm drainage shall be designed to convey the flow of
surface waters to minimize or eliminate damage to persons or property.

131-59 Streets and sidewalks. Streets and sidewalks shall be designed to minimize
potential for increasing or aggravating flood levels.

131-60 Limitations on placement of fill. Subject to the limitations of these regulations,
fill shall be designed to be stable under conditions of flooding including rapid rise and rapid
drawdown of floodwater, prolonged inundation, and protection against flood-related erosion
and scour. Inaddition to these requirements, when intended to support buildings and structures
(Zone A only), fill shall comply with the requirements of the UCC (N.J.A.C. 5:23). Proposed
fill and encroachments in flood hazard areas shall comply with the flood storage displacement
limitations of N.J.A.C. 7:13.

131-61 Hazardous Materials. The placement or storage of any containers holding hazardous

substances in a flood hazard area is prohibited unless the provisions of N.J.A.C. 7:13 which

cover the placement of hazardous substances and solid waste is met.

ARTICLE XII MANUFACTURED HOMES

131-62 General. All manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed
pursuantto the Nationally Preemptive Manufactured Home Construction and Safety Standards
Program (24 CFR 3280).

131-63 Elevation. All new, relocated, and replacement manufactured homes to be placed
or substantially improved in a flood hazard area shall be elevated such that the bottom of
the frame is elevated to or above the elevation specified in Section 131-73.

131-64 Foundations. All new, relocated, and replacement manufactured homes,
including substantial improvement of existing manufactured homes, shall be placed on
foundations as specified by the manufacturer only if the manufacturer’s installation
instructions specify that the home has been designed for flood-resistant considerations and
provides the conditions of applicability for velocities, depths, or wave action as required
by 24 CFR Part 3285-302. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to determine
whether the design meets or exceeds the performance necessary based upon the proposed
site location conditions as a precondition of issuing a flood damage prevention permit. If
the Floodplain Administrator determines that the home’s performance standards will not
withstand the flood loads in the proposed location, the applicant must propose a design
certified by a New Jersey licensed design professional and in accordance with 24 CFR
3285.301 (c) and (d) which conforms with ASCE 24, the accepted standard of engineering
practice for flood resistant design and construction.

131-65 Anchoring. All new, relocated, and replacement manufactured homes to be placed or
substantially improved in a flood hazard area shall be installed using methods and practices
which minimize flood damage and shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored
foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement. This requirement is in
addition to applicable State and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.



131-66 Enclosures. Fully enclosed areas below elevated manufactured homes shall comply
with the requirements of Section 131-73.

131-67 Protection of mechanical equipment and outside appliances. Mechanical
equipment and outside appliances shall be elevated to or above the elevation of the bottom of
the frame required in Section 131-73 of these regulations.

Exception. Where such equipment and appliances are designed and installed to
prevent water from entering or accumulating within their components and the systems
are constructed to resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and stresses, including
the effects of buoyancy, during the occurrence of flooding up to the elevation required
by Section 131-73, the systems and equipment shall be permitted to be located below
that elevation. Electrical wiring systems shall be permitted below the design flood
elevation provided they conform to the provisions of NFPA 70 (National Electric
Code).

ARTICLE XIll RECREATIONAL VEHICLES

131-68 Placement prohibited. The placement of recreational vehicles shall not be authorized
in coastal high hazard areas and in floodways.

131-69 Temporary placement. Recreational vehicles in flood hazard areas shall be fully
licensed and ready for highway use and shall be placed on a site for less than 180 consecutive
days.

131-70 Permanent placement. Recreational vehicles that are not fully licensed and ready for
highway use, or that are to be placed on a site for more than 180 consecutive days, shall meet
the requirements of Section 131-73 for habitable buildings and Section 131-64.

ARTICLE XIV TANKS

131-71 Tanks. Underground and above-ground tanks shall be designed, constructed,
installed, and anchored in accordance with ASCE 24 and N.J.A.C. 7:13.

ARTICLE XV OTHER DEVELOPMENT AND BUILDING WORK

131-72 General requirements for other development and building work. All development
and building work, including man-made changes to improved or unimproved real estate for
which specific provisions are not specified in these regulations or the Uniform Construction
Code (N.J.A.C. 5:23), shall:

(1) Be located and constructed to minimize flood damage;

(2) Meet the limitations of Section 131-36(1) of this ordinance when located in a
regulated floodway;

(3) Be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from
hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during the



conditions of flooding up to the Local Design Flood Elevation determined according to
Section 131-12;

(4) Be constructed of flood damage-resistant materials as described in ASCE 24 Chapter 5;

(5) Have mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems above the Local Design Flood
Elevation determined according to Section 131-12 or meet the requirements of ASCE
24 Chapter 7 which requires that attendant utilities are located above the Local Design
Flood Elevation unless the attendant utilities and equipment are:

i.  Specifically allowed below the Local Design Flood Elevation; and

ii.  Designed, constructed, and installed to prevent floodwaters, including any
backflow through the system from entering or accumulating within the
components.

(6) Not exceed the flood storage displacement limitations in fluvial flood hazard areas in
accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:13; and

(7) Not exceed the impacts to frequency or depth of offsite flooding as required by
N.J.A.C. 7:13 in floodways.

131-73 Requirements for Habitable Buildings and Structures.
1) Construction and Elevation in A Zones not including Coastal A Zones.
a. No portion of a building is located within a \VV Zone.

b. No portion of a building is located within a Coastal A Zone, unless a licensed design
professional certifies that the building’s foundation is designed in accordance with
ASCE 24, Chapter 4.

c. All new construction and substantial improvement of any habitable building (as
defined in Article 1X) located in flood hazard areas shall have the lowest floor,
including basement, together with the attendant utilities (including all electrical,
heating, ventilating, air-conditioning and other service equipment) and sanitary
facilities, elevated to or above the Local Design Flood Elevation as determined in
Section 131-12, be in conformance with ASCE Chapter 7, and be confirmed by an
Elevation Certificate.

d. All new construction and substantial improvements of non-residential structures shall:

I. Have the lowest floor, including basement, together with the attendant utilities
(including all electrical, heating, ventilating, air-conditioning and other service
equipment) and sanitary facilities, elevated to or above the Local Design Flood
Elevation as determined in Section 131-12, be in conformance with ASCE
Chapter 7, and be confirmed by an Elevation Certificate; or

ii. Together with the attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be designed so that
below the Local Design Flood Elevation, the structure:

1. Meets the requirements of ASCE 24 Chapters 2 and 7; and



2. s constructed according to the design plans and specifications provided
at permit application and signed by a licensed design professional, is
certified by that individual in a Floodproofing Certificate, and is
confirmed by an Elevation Certificate.

e. All new construction and substantial improvements with fully enclosed areas below
the lowest floor shall be used solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or
storage in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding.
Enclosures shall:

iii. For habitable structures, be situated at or above the adjoining exterior grade
along at least one entire exterior wall, in order to provide positive drainage of
the enclosed area in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:13; enclosures (including
crawlspaces and basements) which are below grade on all sides are prohibited:;

iv. Be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior
walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters unless the structure is
non-residential and the requirements of 801.2.1(d)ii are met;

v. Be constructed to meet the requirements of ASCE 24 Chapter 2;

vi. Have openings documented on an Elevation Certificate; and

vii. Have documentation that a deed restriction has been obtained for the lot if the
enclosure is greater than six feet in height. This deed restriction shall be
recorded in the Office of the County Clerk or the Registrar of Deeds and
Mortgages in which the building is located, shall conform to the requirements
in N.J.A.C.7:13, and shall be recorded within 90 days of receiving a Flood
Hazard Area Control Act permit or prior to the start of any site disturbance
(including pre-construction earth movement, removal of vegetation and
structures, or construction of the project), whichever is sooner. Deed
restrictions must explain and disclose that:

1. The enclosure is likely to be inundated by floodwaters which may result in
damage and/or inconvenience.

2. The depth of flooding that the enclosure would experience to the Flood
Hazard Area Design Flood Elevation;

3. The deed restriction prohibits habitation of the enclosure and explains that
converting the enclosure into a habitable area may subject the property
owner to enforcement;

131-74 Garages and accessory storage structures. Garages and accessory storage structures
shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Uniform Construction Code.

131-75 Fences. Fences in floodways that have the potential to block the passage of
floodwater, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, shall meet the requirements of
Section 131-36(1) of theseregulations. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:13, any fence located in a
floodway shall have sufficiently large openings so as not to catch debris during a flood and
thereby obstruct floodwaters, such as barbed-wire, split-rail, or strand fence. A fence with little
or no open area, such as a chain link, lattice, or picket fence, does not meet this requirement.



Foundations for fences greater than 6 feet in height must conform with the Uniform
Construction Code. Fences for pool enclosures having openings not in conformance with this
Chapter but in conformance with the Uniform Construction Code to limit climbing require a
variance as described in Article VI of this ordinance.

131-76 Retaining walls, sidewalks, and driveways. Retaining walls, sidewalks and
driveways that involve placement of fill in floodways shall meet the requirements of
Section 131-36(1) of these regulations and N.J.A.C. 7:13.

131-77 Swimming pools. Swimming pools shall be designed and constructed in
accordance with the Uniform Construction Code. Above-ground swimming pools and below-
ground swimming pools that involve placement of fill in floodways shall also meet the
requirements of Section 131-36(1) of theseregulations. Above-ground swimming pools are
prohibited in floodways by N.J.A.C. 7:13.

131-78 Roads and watercourse crossings.

(1) For any railroad, roadway, or parking area proposed in a flood hazard area, the travel
surface shall be constructed at least one foot above the Flood Hazard Area Design
Elevation in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:13.

(2) Roads and watercourse crossings that encroach into regulated floodways or riverine
waterways with base flood elevations where floodways have not been designated,
including roads, bridges, culverts, low- water crossings and similar means for
vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the other side,
shall meet the requirements of Section 131-36(1) of these regulations.

ARTICLE XVI TEMPORARY STRUCTURES AND TEMPORARY STORAGE

131-79 Temporary structures. Temporary structures shall be erected for a period of less than
180 days. Temporary structures shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral
movement resulting from hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during
conditions of the base flood. Fully enclosed temporary structures shall have flood openings
that are in accordance with ASCE 24 to allow for the automatic entry and exit of flood waters.

131-80 Temporary storage. Temporary storage includes storage of goods and materials for
a period of less than 180 days. Stored materials shall not include hazardous materials.

131-81 Floodway encroachment. Temporary structures and temporary storage in
floodways shall meet the requirements of Section 131-36(1) of these regulations.

ARTICLE XVII UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS GROUP U

131-82 Utility and Miscellaneous Group U. In accordance with Section 312 of the
International Building Code, Utility and Miscellaneous Group U includes buildings and
structures that are accessory in character and miscellaneous structures not classified in any
specific occupancy in the Building Code, including, but not limited to, agricultural buildings,
aircraft hangars (accessory to a one- or two-family residence), barns, carports, communication



equipment structures (gross floor area less than 1,500 sq. ft.), fences more than 6 feet (1829
mm) high, grain silos (accessory to a residential occupancy), livestock shelters, private
garages, retaining walls, sheds, stables, tanks and towers.

131-83 Flood loads. Utility and miscellaneous Group U buildings and structures, including
substantial improvement of such buildings and structures, shall be anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from flood loads, including the effects of
buoyancy, during conditions up to the Local Design Flood Elevation as determined in Section
131-12.

131-84 Elevation. Utility and miscellaneous Group U buildings and structures, including
substantial improvement of such buildings and structures, shall be elevated such that the lowest
floor, including basement, is elevated to or above the Local Design Flood Elevation as
determined in Section 131-12 and in accordance with ASCE 24. Utility lines shall be designed
and elevated in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:13.

131-85 Enclosures below base flood elevation. Fully enclosed areas below the design flood
elevation shall be constructed in accordance with Section 131-73 and with ASCE 24 for new
construction and substantial improvements. EXisting enclosures such as a basement or
crawlspace having a floor that is below grade along all adjoining exterior walls shall be
abandoned, filled-in, and/or otherwise modified to conform with the requirements of N.J.A.C.
7:13 when the project has been determined to be a substantial improvement by the Floodplain
Administrator.

131-86 Flood-damage resistant materials. Flood-damage-resistant materials shall be used
below the Local Design Flood Elevation determined in Section 131-12.

131-87 Protection of mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems. Mechanical, plumbing,
and electrical systems, equipment and components, heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
plumbing fixtures, duct systems, and other service equipment, shall be elevated to or above the
Local Design Flood Elevation determined in Section 131-12.

Exception: Electrical systems, equipment and components, and heating, ventilating,
air conditioning, and plumbing appliances, plumbing fixtures, duct systems, and other
service equipment shall be permitted to be located below the Local Design Flood
Elevation provided that they are designed and installed to prevent water from entering
or accumulating within the components and to resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic
loads and stresses, including the effects of buoyancy, during the occurrence of flooding
to the Local Design Flood Elevation in compliance with the flood-resistant
construction requirements of ASCE 24. Electrical wiring systems shall be permitted to
be located below the Local Design Flood Elevation provided they conform to the
provisions of NFPA 70 (National Electric Code).

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.
Where any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of these regulations is, for any
reason, declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect



the validity of the regulations as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part so declared.
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.
This ordinance shall take effect on May 7, 2024.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon
final passage and publication as required by law.

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction — 04/16/2024

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain | Absent
Member
Burkley X X
Carr X
Mayor Henley X
Mungo X
Wright X X
Roll Call Vote -Upon Adoption —
Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain | Absent
Member
Burkley
Carr
Mayor Henley
Mungo
Wright

Adopted upon final reading on

Mayor Sandy Henley

Attest

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON, NEW JERSEY
ORDINANCE 6-2024

CALENDAR YEAR 2024
ORDINANCE TO EXCEED THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET APPROPRIATION
LIMITS
AND TO ESTABLISH A CAP BANK
(N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14)

WHEREAS, the Local Government Cap Law, N.J.S. 40A: 4-45.1 et seq., provides that
in the preparation of its annual budget, a municipality shall limit any increase in said budget to
2.5% unless authorized by ordinance to increase it to 3.5% over the previous year’s final
appropriations, subject to certain exceptions; and,

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.15a provides that a municipality may, when authorized
by ordinance, appropriate the difference between the amount of its actual final appropriation and
the 3.5% percentage rate as an exception to its final appropriations in either of the next two
succeeding years; and,

WHEREAS, the Committee of the Township of Westampton in the County of
Burlington finds it advisable and necessary to increase its CY 2024 budget by up to 3.5% over the
previous year’s final appropriations, in the interest of promoting the health, safety and welfare of
the citizens; and,

WHEREAS, the Committee hereby determines that a 1.0% increase in the budget for
said year, amounting to $115,537.97 in excess of the increase in final appropriations otherwise
permitted by the Local Government Cap Law, is advisable and necessary; and,

WHEREAS the Committee hereby determines that any amount authorized hereinabove
that is not appropriated as part of the final budget shall be retained as an exception to final
appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Committee of the Township of
Westampton, in the County of Burlington, a majority of the full authorized membership of this
governing body affirmatively concurring, that, in the CY 2024 budget year, the final
appropriations of the Township of Westampton shall, in accordance with this ordinance and
N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14, be increased by 3.5%, amounting to $404,382.88, and that the CY 2024
municipal budget for the Township of Westampton be approved and adopted in accordance with
this ordinance; and,

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that any that any amount authorized hereinabove that
is not appropriated as part of the final budget shall be retained as an exception to final
appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years; and,

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance as introduced be
filed with the Director of the Division of Local Government Services within 5 days of
introduction; and,

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance upon adoption,
with the recorded vote included thereon, be filed with said Director within 5 days after such
adoption.



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon final passage and publication as required by law.

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction — 04/02/2024

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain | Absent
Member
Burkley X
Carr X X
Mayor Henley X
Mungo X
Wright X X
Roll Call Vote -Upon Adoption —
Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain | Absent
Member
Burkley
Carr
Mayor Henley
Mungo
Wright

Adopted upon final reading on

Mayor Sandy Henley

Attest

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 82 OF THE WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP
CODE ENTITLED “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES”

ORDINANCE NO. 8-2024

WHEREAS, Chapter 82 of the Township Code allows for consumption of alcoholic
beverages in connection with public celebrations or similar special events subject to authorization
by Township Committee by way of permit; and

WHEREAS, Township events, including food truck events, Halloween, and other special
events and community celebrations in the Township have been popular with residents; and

WHEREAS, Township Committee of the Township of Westampton desires continue to
pursue these types of events moving forward; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the popularity of these events, the Township Committee of
the Township of Westampton desires to more formally regulate alcohol consumption and open
containers at these events.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED, that the Township
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that Chapter
82 of the Westampton Township Code entitled “Alcoholic Beverages” is hereby amended as
follows:

SECTION 1: AMEND Chapter 82 Alcoholic Beverages Section 3 Consumption or possession
of alcoholic beverages, paragraph A. (3), which shall read as follows:

Section 82-3. A. (1)(d.) Exceptions. The Township Committee, in connection with public
celebrations or similar special events, may, by written permit, specifically authorize the
consumption of alcoholic beverages in a public park, square, parking lot or other public place or
area or portion thereof, as specified in such permit and on the date and the hours therein specified,
subject to conditions as set forth in the approved permit.

(1) The governing body of the Township of Westampton approves the use of outdoor open container
liquor containers consistent with this section at the Municipal Complex, and other Township
owned property as approved by permit for Township sponsored events.

(2) Conditions under which a person may consume an alcoholic beverage under paragraph A.
(1)(d.) of this section:

i. The person must be at least 21 years of age;
i. No open containers shall be permitted before 11:00 a.m. or after 11:00 p.m.;



iii. Alcoholic beverages consumed in the area set forth in paragraph A. (1)(d.) of this
section must have been purchased from an authorized vendor with any appliable
permits and approvals from the Township and ABC;

iv. All alcoholic beverages must be in a plastic cup.

V. The alcoholic beverage container may not exceed 16 fluid ounces.

vi. No open container of an alcoholic beverage may be removed from the area set forth in
paragraph A. (1)(d.) of this section.

vii. No open container of an alcoholic beverage may be consumed in any motor vehicle

whether or not in the area set forth in paragraph A. (1)(d.) of this section.

(3) Any permitted provider subject to this subsection found to be in violation may have their permit
revoked by Township Committee. Such violation could be grounds for denial of permit application
by the provider under this subsection in the future.

SECTION 2. Repealer, Severability and Effective Date.

A Repealer. Any and all Ordinances inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of any such inconsistencies.

B. Severability. In the event that any clause, section, paragraph or sentence of this Ordinance
is deemed to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the Township Committee hereby
declares it intent that the balance of the Ordinance not affected by said invalidity shall remain in
full force and effect to the extent that it allows the Township to meet the goals of the Ordinance.

C. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect upon proper
passage in accordance with the law.



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage
and publication as required by law.

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction — 04/16/2024

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member
Burkley X
Carr X X
Mayor Henley X
Mungo X X
Wright X
Roll Call Vote -Upon Adoption —
Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member
Burkley
Carr
Mayor Henley
Mungo
Wright

Attest

Adopted upon final reading on

Mayor Sandy Henley

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

APPROVING PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 05/07/2024

RESOLUTION NO. 67-24

WHEREAS, the Township is in receipt of various vouchers submitted by vendors and/or
other claimants for goods rendered and/or services provided to the Township; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there exists a line-item
appropriation against which each claim shall be charged and that there are sufficient funds
available for the payment of each voucher; and

WHEREAS, each voucher contains a certification of a department head, or duly
designated representative having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been
provided or services rendered to the Township and that the goods or services are consistent with
prior authorizations; and

WHEREAS, a list of all conforming claims which have been approved by the Chief
Financial Officer has been prepared and reviewed by the Township Committee and is appended
hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee for the Township of Westampton for the
reasons set forth above hereby approves the payment of the vouchers set forth on the attached
Exhibit A and this Resolution shall be recorded as part of the minutes of this meeting and shall
upon approval be open to the public.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road,
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member

Burkley

Carr

Mayor Henley

Mungo

Wright




May 3, 2024
07:24 M

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON
Bi11 List By Budget Account

Page No: 13

Totals by Year-Fund

Fund Description Fund Budget Revd Budget Held Budget Total  Revenue Total G/L Total Total
CURRENT FUND 3-01 4,537.12 0.00 4,537.12 0.00 0.00 4,537.12
CURRENT FUND 4-01 3,079,797.51 0.00 3,079,797.51 0.00 0.00 3,079,797.51
CAPITAL FUND 4-04 6,631.56 0.00 6,631.56 0.00 0.00 6,631.56
DOG FUND 4-12 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00
ESCROW FUND 4-14 12,891.86 0.00 12,891.86 0.00 0.00 12,891.86
RECREATION FUND 4-17 5,818.18 0.00 5,818.18 0.00 0.00 5,818.18
OPEN SPACE FUND 4-18 56,094.42 0.00 56,004, 42 0.00 0.00 56,094.42
POLICE OUTSIDE OVERTIME FUND 4-21 2,164.61 0.00 2,164.61 0.00 0.00 2,164.61
SNOW REMOVAL FUND 4-22 6,200.00 0.00 6,200.00 0.00 0.00 6,200.00
Year Total: 3,169,628.14 0.00 3,169,628.14 0.00 0.00 3,169,628.14

otal Of ATT Funds: 3,174,165.26 0.00 3,174,165.26 0.00 0.00 3,174,165.26

APPROVEL

WESTAMPTON TOWNSH
DATE  May T 2024




May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON page Mo: 1
17:24 mi Bi11 List By Budget Account
P.C. Typa: All Print Alpha, Revenue, & G/t Accounts: Y Open: N veid: N Paid: N

Format: Detail with Line Ttem Notes

Range: 3-01-20-110-000

to 4-28-56-850-800 Bid: Y

Held: Y Aprv: N Rovd: Y
State: Y Other: Y Exempt: Y

Revd Batch Id Range; First  to Last Include Non-Budgeted: Y
vendors: All
Department Page Break: Ne¢. Subtotal CAFR: No Subtotal Department: No
Account Description First  Revd Chk/void PO
P.0. Id Item vendor Ttem Description Amount Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
Fund: CURRENT FUND
3-01-20-120-199 ADMINISTRATIVE & EXEC-OE-MISCELLANEQUS
00215071 1 04153  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 2023 IIF WELLNESS-TREADMILL 309.97 R 04729724 04/23/24
3-01-25-240-032 POLICE-OE-UNIFORMS
00214998 1 03945  THE ACTIVITY GROUP LLC PTL JIMINEZ-BULLET PROOF VEST 167469 R 04/13/24 05/02/24 INv-00806
AND OTHER UNIFORMS
3-01-25-260-026 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-OE-EMS MAINT
00215009 1 00846  STATE OF NJ DCA BFCE DORES BFCE REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE 382.00 R 04/16/24 (4/15/24 5537535
FOR 780 WOODLANE ROAD-LIFE HAZARD USE
FEE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023
3-01-32-465-251 TRASH DISPOSAL-QE-CONDOMINIUMS
00215037 101416  TOWNSHIF OF MAPLE SHADE DECEMBER 2023 TRASE PICKUP 2,170.46 R 0472224 04722724 109438
WESTAMPTON COURT CONDOMINIUMS
Fund Total: CURRENT FUND 4,537.12
Year Total: 4,537.12
Fund: CURRENT FUND -
4-01-20-120-036 ADMINISTRATIVE & EXEC-OE-OFFICE SUPPLIES ‘
00214936 1 00041  MGL PRINTING SOLUTIONS MINUTE BOOK PAPER 72,00 R 04/05/24 04/16/24 205584
00214936 7 0C041  MGL PRINTING SOLUTIONS SHIPPING 18.00 R 04705/24 (4/16/24 205584
00215051 1 02287  QUADIENT LEASING USA INC INK CARTRIDGE-POSTAGE METER 140.60 R 04723724 04/29/24 17336600
_ 230.60
4-01-20-120-044 ADMIN & EXEC-OE-DUES & SCHOOLING
00215015 100370  BOWMAN & COMPANY LLP SUPPLEMENTAL DEBT STATEMENT 600.00 R 04/17/24 04717724 115982

BOND ORDINANCE#2024-7 INTRODUCED APRIL



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 2
07:24 aM Bi11 List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd chk/void . 4]
P.0. Id Item vendor Ttem Dascription Amount  Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-20-120-044 ADMIN & EXFC-OE-DUES & SCHOOLING Continued
16 2024
00215062 1 (3888  WENDY GIRSON REIMBURSE-CLERKS CONFERENCE 441.44 R 04/29/24 04729724
00215081 1 00206  NJ CONFERENCE OF MAYCRS CONFERENCE REGISTRATION-59TH 465.00 R 04/30/24 04/30/24
ANNUAL MAYORS CONFERENCE FOR SANDY
HENLEY
HARD ROCK CASINO & HOTEL-MAY 15-17 2024
1,506.44
4-01-20-150-044 ASSESSMENT OF TAXES-OE-DUES & SCHOOLING
00215006 1 00415  ASSN OF MCPL ASSESSORS OF NI RFGISTRATION FEE 350.00 R 04/15/24 §4/15/24
MAY 19-722 2024 JOINT CONFFRENCE FOR
MARIE PROCACCI-SHAPING THE FUTURE AT THE
SHORE IN 2024
4-(1-20-165-021 ENGINFERING SERVICES-OF-MAP REVISIONS
00215107 2 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES  MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 1,669.00 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 721520
4-01-20-165-299 ENGINEERING SERVICES-OE-MISCELLANEQUS
00215107 1 Q0560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES  MARCE 2024 ENGINEERING 1,156.00 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 221921
£-01-21-180-028 LAND DEVELOPMENT BOARD-QE-ENGINEER
00215060 1 02461  CME ASSOCCIATES FEBRUARY 2024 ENGINEERING 145,50 R " 04/29/24 04/29/24 348281
GREGORY FAUGHNER APPLICATION
4-01-21-180-044 { AND DEVELOPMENT BOARD-OF-DUFS&SCHOOLING
00215033 1 00044  NJ PLANNING OFFICTALS 2024 WEMBERSHIP DUES 370.00 r 04720724 04/20/24 082024295
00215034 1 04321  JENNIFER CRAGG REIMBURSE-DROP BOX UPDATE 119.88 R 04720724 04/20/24
439.38
4-01-23-220-201 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE-DE-NJSHB PLAN
00215313 1 01661 NI HEALTH BENEFITS PROGRAM APRIL 2024 HEALTH INSURANCE 119,414,84 r 05/03/24 05/03/24
4-01-23-220-202 EMPLOVEE Hzm¢w>znm-o_m-%mmmxHBHoZ
00215089 1 028064  BENECARD SERVICES INC MAY 2024 PRESCRIFTION 28,307.48 & 04730724 04/30/24
INSURANCE
£-01-23-220-204 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE-CE-VISION
00215029 103069  SUPERIQR VISION OF NI INC MAY 2024 VISION PLAN 307.13 & 04720724 04720724 814640



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMFTON Page No: 3
07:24 M Bill List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd Chk/void ]
P.0. Id Item Vendor Item Descriptien Amount  Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-23-220-205 EMPLOYZE INSURANCE-OE-FLEXIBLE SPENDING
00215083 1 03207 ~ FLEXFACTS GRANTS BENEFITS APRIL 2024 FLEXIBLE 45,50 R (05/02/24 05/02/24 - TPAS-912556
SPENDING ACCOUNT FEES
4-01-25-2£0-028 POLICE-OE-SERVICES
00215040 1 02436  FRASER ADVANCED INFQ SYSTEMS  RECORDS TONER BLACK 20.7%¢ R 04723724 05/02/24 1421681
00215041 1 04122 T MOBILE INVESTIGATIVE-DETECTIVE BUREAU 50.00 R 04723724 05/02/24 9564477786
00215083 1 01249  INTERNAL AFFAIRS ASSOCIATION 2024 MEMBERSHIP DUES - 50.00 R 04/30/24 04/30/24
120.79
4-01-25-240-030 POLICE-OE-GENERAL EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES
00215071 4 04153  AMAZON CAPTTAL SERVICES FOLICE SUPPLIES 366.8% R 04/28/24 04/29/24
4-01-25-240-032 POLICE-OE-UNIFORMS
00214910 1 04210  woODS SCREEN & STITCH LLC BLACK TEE SHIRTS UNIFORM 900.00 R 04/01/24 05/02/24 1073
00214978 1 02988  AMCHAR WHOLESALE INC GLOCK 43X MAGAZINES 395.78 R 04711724 05/02/24 1104753
1,295.78
4-(1-25-240-042 POLICE-QF-TRAINING
00214977 1 03628  AXON ENTERPRISES INC TASER INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION 990.00 R 04/11/24 05/02/24 INUS238165
BIERT & WELTHY :
£-01-25-240-202 POLICE-OE-FIREARMS EQUIPMENT
00214878 1 00081  LAWMEN SUPPLY CD OF NJ INC AMMO ORDER PER QUOTE#284 6,454.28 R 03/26/24 05/02/24
4-01-25-240-264 POLICE-OE-PETTY CASH ITEMS
00214986 1 02823  RYAN BIERI REIMBURSEMENT-DEP COLD CASE 36.48 R 04712724 05/02/24
00215070 1 01743 PATRICIA SALTOS REIMBURSE-AIR FRYER FOR 59.70 R 04/28/24 05/02/24
DEPARTMENT USE
96.18
4-(1-25-260-026 EMFRGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-OE-EMS MAINT
00214956 1 (1355  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERV (WTFD)} MARCH 2024 SUPPLIES 783.10 R 04/09/24 05/03/24
00215024 1 01994  DELAGE LANDEN FIMANCIAL SERV  MAY 2024 PRINTER LEASE 115.00 r 04/20/24 04/20/24 82341582
00215026 1 02532  UNIFIRST FIRST AID & SAFETY  FIRST AID KITS FOR PUBLIC 3,760.40 R 04/20/24 05/03/24 R15523%

WORKS, POLICE, ADMINISTRATION &
RECREATION



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 4
07:24 aM Bi17 List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd chk/void PO
P.0. Id Item vendor Item Description Amount Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-75-260-026 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-OE-EMS MAINT Continued
00215027 103196  ACTION UNIFORM (O CLASS A UNIFORMS 331.00 r 04720724 05/03/24 59322
4,989.50
£-01-25-260-042 EMER MED SERV-CE-TRAINING
00214579 2 03376  TARGET SOLUTIONS LFARNING LLC TARGET SOLUTIONS FOR TRAINING 4.489.00 R 02/08/24 ©5/03/24 93303
AND RECORDS
4-01-25-260-044 EMER MED SERV-OE-DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
00215115 103470 BURLCO EMS CHIEFS ASSOCTIATION 2024 MEMBERSHIP DUES 100.00 R (5/03/24 05/03/24
4-01-25-260-092 EMER MED SERV-OE-FIRE EQUIPMENT MAINT
00215102 102733  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV INC  SCBA Repair 1,368.0¢ R 05/02/24 05/03/24 2028995
4-01-25-260-199 EMER MED SERV RILLING-QE-MISC
00215017 1 02638  FARNSWORTH & SEMPTIMPHELTER  MARCH 2024 MEDICAL BILLING 513.14 R 04/18/24 04/18/24 9449
£-01-25-265-299 FIRE HYDRANT SERVICE-OE-MISC
00215008 5 00089  NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER CO  MARCH 2024 FIRE HYDRANT SERV 10,422.44 R 04/16/24 04/16/24
00215008 6 00089  NEW JFRSEY AMERICAN WATER €O  APRIL 2024 FIRE HYDRANT SERV §,568.00 R 04716724 04/16/24
Hm_moo.ﬁh
4-01-25-275-299 MUNICIPAL PROSECUTOR-OTHER EXPENSES-MISC
00214940 1 04315  CHANCE & MCCANN LLC PROSECUTOR-FEBRUARY 15 2024 730.00 & 04/05/24 04/16/24 179
00214940 2 04315 CHANCE & MCCANN LLC PROSECUTOR-FEBRUARY 29 2024 730.00 r 0405724 04/16/24 179
00214940 3 04315  CHANCE & MCCANN LLC PROSECUTOR-MARCH 7 2024 730.00 R 04705724 04/16/24 179
00214940 4 04315  CHANCE & MCCANN LLC PROSECUTOR-MARCH 14 2024 736.00 R 04/05/24 04/16/24 i79
AS PER INVOICE#179
00215087 1 04322  SMITHBRIDGE LLP PROSECUTOR-MARCH 21 & 28 2024 1,455.00 R 04/30/24 04/30/24
00215087 7 04322 SMITHBRIDGE LLP ZND QTR 2024 PROSECUTOR §.756.00 R 04/30/24 04/30/24
13,125.00
4-01-26-290-024 STREETS & ROADS~OE-BUTLDINGS & GROUNDS
00215020 1 04118  INSTANT AIR LLC POLICE HVAC REPAIR 445,75 R 04/18/24 04718724 11096
00215021 102630  CLC LOCKSMITHS CHANGE COMBINATION-PRIME KEYS 700.50 R 04/18/24 04/18/24 757290
00215044 1 04303  ADAMS ELECT CONTRACTORS LLC  FIRE HOUSE REPAIRS 675.00 R 04/23/24 04723724 1924

INSTALLATION OF RECEPTACLES



May 3, 2024

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

07:24 AM Bill List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd PO
P.0. Id Ttem vendor Item Description Amount  Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-26-290-024 STREETS & ROADS-OE-BUILDINGS & GROUNDS  Continued ‘
00215061 1 04118  INSTANT AIR LLC FIRE HOUSE HVAC REPAIR 73123 R 04/29/24 04725724 11114
2,552.48
4-G1-26-290-030 STREETS & ROADS-OE-SUPPLIES
00215016 1 04307  MATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC TRASH BAGS, SPRAY BUFF, WHITE 638.26 ® 04/18/24 (04718724 24-0424
FLOOR PADS & FREIGHT
00215050 1 04307  MATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC TRASH BAGS, TOILET TISSUE, ETC 343.13 r 04/23/24 04/23/24 24-0434
FLOOR PADS & FREIGHT
00215050 2 04307  WATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC TRASH BAGS, TOILET TISSUE, ETC 231,29 R 04723724 04/23/24 24-0435
00215050 3 04307  MATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC TRASH BAGS, TOILET TISSUE, 231,29 R 04723724 04723124 24-G436
PAPER TOWELS
00215050 4 04307  MATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC PAPER TOWELS, TOILET TISSUE, 869.3¢ R 04/23/24 04/23/24 24-0437
TRASH BAGS, CLEAR ROLLS
00215050 5 04307  MATRIX MAINTENANCE SUPPLY LLC CREDIT FOR RETURNS 387.40- R 04723724 04/23/24 M24-0437
00215071 3 04153 AMAZON CAPTITAL SERVICES PURLIC WORKS SUPPLIES 630.99 R 04729724 (4/29/24
2,556.90
4-01-26-250-260 STREETS & ROADS-OE-STREET & RDAD REFAIR
00215042 103500  ROBERT T WINZINGER INC RECYCLING-LEAF PIT BASE LOADS 268.7¢ R 04723724 04723/24 2404172
4-01-26-290-299 STREETS & RCADS-OF-MISCELLANEGUS
00215123 104198  TYLER PIKUNIS REIMBURSEMENT-PERMLT 11.00 R 05/03/24 05/03/24
4-01-26-315-201 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE-OE-POLICE
00214979 1 00485  HIGHWAY TIRE INC TRUCK#2-NEW TIRE 135.00 ® 04/11/24 05/02/24 43777
(0214976 2 00485  HIGHWAY TIRE INC CAR #10 2 New Tires 251.84 7 05/02/24 05/02/24 44055
00214979 3 00485  HIGHWAY TIRE INC Truck #1 2 New Tires 279.08 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 43976
00214987 1 02738  BC AUTO PARTS TRUCK#4-SENSOR i81.64 R 04/12/24 05/02/24 101331863
00214987 Z 02738  BC AUTO PARTS CREDIT-TRUCK#1D 86.92- R 04712724 05/02/24 101331652
002315063 1 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLF#10-ANTIFREEZE 73.98 R 04/29/24 05/02/24 132097
00215063 2 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLF#10-RADIATOR HOSE 44,39 R 04/29/24 05/02/24 132086
00215063 3 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#1(-STARTER 172.32 R 04/29/24 05/02/24 132021
1,051.33
4-01-26-315-202 VEHICLE MAINT-OE-STREETS & ROADS-INSIDE
C0215001 102743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#65-LED LENS & MC PLUGS 19.82 R 04/15/24 Q4/15/24 130233
C0215001 2 02743 AUTD PARTS CONNECTION SHOP STOCK-AIR & FUEL FILTERS 77,47 R 04715724 04/15/24 130182
00215014 1 02496  STROBES N MCRE WIDE ANGLE LED AMBER LIGHTS 421.30 R 04/16/24 04/16/24 305855



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

07:24 aM Bill List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd Chk/void PO
P.0. Id Item vendor Ttem Description Amount Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-26-315-202 VEHICLE MAINT-OE-~STREETS & ROADS-INSIDE Cortinued
00215022 1 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#60-RIGHT ANGLE PIGTAIL 45 R 04/18/24 04/18/24 131025
00215022 2 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#60-1AMPS & PLUGS 79.33 r 04/18/24 04/18/24 130889
00215022 3 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION SHOP-ENGINE OIL FILTERS 107,28 r 04/18/24 04/18/24 130846
00215023 1 02687  ROBEY'S LAWNMOWER REPAIR INC  WEEDWACKER-CARBURETOR ASSEMBLY 59,99 R 04718724 04/18/24 6139
00215030 1 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#40 VAC-RIGHT ANGLE 2,25 R 04/20/24 04/20/24 131277
PIGTAIL
00215030 2 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHICLE#30-LEAF VAC-RIGHT 2.25 R 04/20/24 04/20/24 131276
ANGLE PIGTAIL
(0215032 102487  HECHT TRAILERS INC VEHICLE#41-WIRE HARNESS 7wAY 32.35 R 04/20/24 04/20/24 81340
CAR END-7 FT
00215035 102743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION VEHTCLF#68-RESONATOR ASSEMBLY £8.95 R C4/22/24 04722724 131317
00215039 1 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION CONES 40MM 430.00 R D4/23/24 04723724 131654
00215047 1 01271 J0SEPH FAZZIC INC BRUSH TRAILER-WALL ROUNDED 19.02 R 04/23/24 04723724 R193747
ALUMINUM
00215055 102743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTIOM air fiiter & battery 71.27 R 04725724 04/25/24 131844
00215655 2 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION LED Lens & Right Angle Plug 34.54 R 04725724 04/25/24. 131912
00215056 1 02697  ROBEY'S LAWNMOWER REPAIR INC  .095 - 51k spocl 74.85 R 04/25/24 04725724 6637
00215057 1 04166  MIDWEST MOTOR SUPPLY CO INC  PB92514 & PCSN34G 65.50 R 04/26/24 04/26/24 102131793
00215058 1 00485  HIGHWAY TIRE INC LT265/70R17 E 123/120S WRL DUR 195,31 r 04/26/24 04/26/24 44221
00215079 102743 AUTC PARTS CONNECTION PW INSIDE MAINT 21.63 R 04730724 04730724 132436
0C215080 1 02030  HOOVER TRUCK CENTERS VEHICLE#41-SENSOR 36.11 R 04/30/24 (4/30/24 212612p
SENSORS
00215091 1 00088  MILLER FGRD VEHICLE#S8-JET KIT 22.72 R 05/01/24 05/01/24 54489356
00215092 1 01467  FRANKLIN TRAILERS INC BEARING KIT & 10" STUD DRUM 142,19 R® 05/01/24 05/01/24 606133-1
00215099 102743 AUTC PARTS CONNECTION Py INSIDE MAINT #58 208.96 ® 05/02/24 05/02/24 132988
00235099 2 02743 AUTC PARTS CONNECTION PW Inside Credit 156.72- R 05/02/24 05/02/24 133021
00215122 102743  AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Py INSIDE MAINT #41 79,62 R 05/03/24 05703724 132763
00215122 2 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION 2 Inside 31.60 & 05/03/24 05/03/24 133403
2,351.59 ,
4-01-26-315-203 VEKICLE MAINT-OE-STREETS & R0ADS-OUTSIDE
00215031 1 02472 JOHNSON AND TOWERS LLC LEAF VAC #30 420.41 R 04/20/24 04/20/24 RA02014805
BRAKE CLEANER, CHASSIS REPAIRS .
00215072 102972  SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS INC 2ND QTR 2024 PARTS WASHER 249.00 R 04/29/24 04/29/24 94259512

MAINTENANCE CONTRACT

669.41



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 7
07:24 A Bill List By Budget Acccunt
Account Description First  Revd PO
p.0, 1d Item Vendor Item Dascription Amount Stat/chk Enc Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-26-3315-204 VEHICLE MAINT-OE-EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERV
00214579 103376  TARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING LLC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE MODULE FOR 1,575.96 R 02/09/24 05/03/24 93303
TRUCK, EQUIPMENT, PPE & SCBA REPAIRS AND
INSPECTIONS
00215100 1 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Fire vehicle Supplies 13.28 R 05/02/24 05/03/24 131949
00215100 3 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Fire vehicle Supplies 4498 R 08/03/24 05/03/24 121475
00215100 4 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Fire vehicte Supplies 38.75 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 121561
00215100 5 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Fire vehicle Supplies 75.95 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 121941
00215100 6 02743 AUTO PARTS CONNECTION Fire velicle Suppiies 9.72 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 130108
00215101 101552  CAMPBELL SUPPLY (O INC VEHICLE#2722-REPAIRS 505.06 R 05/02/24 £5/03/24 101020877:01
00215103 1 000R®  MILLER FORD 27804 Brakes 7,118.35 R 05/02/24 05/03/24 36026029
00215103 2 00088  MILLER FORD 2700 & 2701 LOF 104.60 R 05/02/24 05/03/24 5376984
00215103 3 00088  MILLER FORD 2700 & 2701 LOF 104.60 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 5377005
4,591.25
4-01-30-150-299 RESERVE FOR TAX APPEALS-OTHER EXP-MISC
00215036 103123  KATHLEEN MCSILL GASKIEL.ESQ  JANUARY 2024 LEGAL-TAX APPEALS 1,020.00 R 04722724 04722124 04-0124
00215036 2 03123  KATHLEEN MCGILL GASKILL ESQ  FEBRUARY 2024LEGAL-TAX APPEALS 810.00 R 04/22/24 04/22/24 04-0224
00215036 3 03123  KATHLEEN MCGILL GASKILL ESQ  MARCH 2024 LEGAL-TAX APPEALS 1,560.00 R 04722724 04722724 04-0324
3,390.00
4-01-31-435-299 ELECTRICITY & NATURAL GAS-OE-MISC
00215046 1 04175  UGI ENERGY SERVICES LLC APRIL 2024 NATURAL GAS 256.07 R 04723724 04723724 66133606
RECREATION CENTER
00215075 1 00063  PSE&G APRIL 2024 ELECTRIC 34.48 R 04729724 (4729724 603508213080
STORAGE SHED FOR POLICE-& PUBLIC WORKS
(0715112 1 00063  PSE&G APRIL 2024 ELECT & GAS-WTFD 1,586.05 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 602208589055
1,876.60
4-(11-31-440-299 UTIL-TELECOMMUNICATION-OE-MISC
00215010 1 00007  VERIZON APRIL 2024 PHONE LINES 161.76 R 04/16/24 04/16/24
FIRE ALARM AT AMERICAN LEGION HALL-781
RANCOCAS ROAD
00215011 1 01272  COMCAST MaY 024 XFINITY Tv-PCLICE 10,37 R 04/16/24 04/16/24
00215019 1 01057  VERIZON WIRELESS APRIL 2024 CELL PHONES & 585.54 R (4/18/24 04/18/24 9961167297
POLICE LAPTOP LINES
00215043 101704  COMCAST BUSINESS MAY 2024 BUSINESS PHONE 374.71 R 04/23/24 (4/23/24 199498681
LINE USAGE IN MUNICIPAL BUILDING
00215076 1 01272  COMCAST MAY 2024 INTERNET-REC CTR 113.76 R 04/29/24 04/26/24



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: §
07:24 M 8111 List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd  chk/void PO
P.0. Id Item vendor Item Description Amount  Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date  Invoice Type
4-01-31-440-209 UTIL-TELECOMMUNICATION-OE-MISC Continued
00215076 2 01272 COMCAST MAY 2024 INTERNET-POLICE DEPT 483.17 R 04728724 04729724
00215110 100033  AT&T MOBILITY APRIL 2024 CELL PHONES 1,558.57 R 05/03/24 05/03/24 2872897967814x0
00215111 1 03272 COMCAST MAY 2024 INTERNET-WIFD 313.43 R® 05/03/24 05/03/24
3,802.31
4-01-31-445-299 UTILITIES-WATER & SEWER-MISC
00215008 1 00085  NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER CO  APRIL 2024 WATER-AMERICAN 31.66 R 04/16/24 04/16/24 .
LEGION HALL-781 RANCOCAS ROAD
00215008 2 00089  NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER CO  APRIL 2024 WATER-PRIVATE 242.58 R 04/16/24 04/16/24
FIRE SERVICE-SPRINKLER SYSTEM IN
MUNICIPAL BUILDING
00215008 3 00089  NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER CO  APRIL 2024 WATER-FIRE HOUSE 103.52 R 04/15/24 04/16/24
00215008 4 00089  NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER €O APRIL 2024 WATER-MCPL BLDG 412.21 Rr 04/15/24 04/16/24
00215077 100989  WILEINGRORO MCPL UTIL AUTH ZND QTR 2024 WATER & SEWER 20540 R 04/30/24 04730724
RECREATION CENTER
1,018.37
4-01-31-447-299 UTTILITIES-PETROLEUM PRODUCTS-MISC
00215013 103418  RIGGINS INC DIESEL FUEL (4/15/24) 598.71 R 04/16/24 04/16/24 75122281 '
00215084 1 03418  RIGGINS INC DIESEL FUEL {4/29/%4) 307.11 ® 04/30/24 04/30/24 75124558
905.82
4-(1-32-465-249 TRASH DISPOSAL-OE-LANDFILL FEES
00215094 100029  BURLINGTON COUNTY TREASURER  APRIL 2024 LANDFILL FEES 27,676.45 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 ST101450
4-01-32-465-250 TRASH DISPOSAL~OE-RECYCLING TAX
00215094 2 00029  BURLINGTON COUNTY TREASURER  APRIL 2024 LANDFILL FEES 861,30 R 05702724 05/02/24 ST101450
RECYCLE
4-01-32-465-251 TRASH DISPOSAL-OE-CONDOMINIUMS ‘
00215007 1 01416  TOWNSHIP OF MAPLE SHADE MARCH 2024 TRASH PICKUP 2,685.04 R 04/16/24 04/16/24 109486
WESTAMFTON COURT CONDOMINIUMS
4-01-43-490-020 MUNICIPAL COURT-OTHER EXPENSES-SERVICES
00215090 1 03430  HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS APRIL 2074 CREDIT CARD FEE 500.30 & 05/01/24 05701724
EASTAMFTCN TOWNSHIP
00215090 7 (3430 HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS APRIL 2024 CREDIT CARD FEE 716,58 R 05/01/24 05/01/24

WESTAMPTCON TOWNSHIP



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 9
07:24 v Bi11 List By Budget Account ,
Account Description First  Revd Chk/void PO
P.0. Id Tiem vendor Item Description Amount  Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-01-43-490-020 MUNICIPAL COURT-OTHER EXPENSES-SERVICES Continued
00215090 3 03430 HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS APRIL 2024 CREDIT CARD FEE 301.33 & 05/01/24 05/01/24
HAINESPORT TOWNSHIP
1,518.21
4-01-43-490-036 MUNICIPAL COURT-QE-OFFICE SUPPLIES
00215071 2 04153  AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES COURT OFFICE SUPPLIES 159.25 R (4/29/24 04/29/24
4-01-43-490-044 MUNICIPAL COURT-OE-DUES & SCHOOLING
00215038 100208  BURLCC MCPL COURT ADMIN ASSN 2024 MEMBERSHIP DUES 240,00 R 04722124 04/22/24
4 MEMBERS OF MUNICIPAL COURT OFFICE
4-01-55-900-001 REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL TAX
00214599 1 00004  RANCOCAS VALLEY REG HIGHSCHOOL MAY 2024 REGIONAL HIGH 531,258.10 R 04/13/24 04/13/24
SCHOOL TAXES
4-01-55-900-002 LOCAL DISTRICT SCHOOL TAX _
00215000 100074  WESTAMPTON TwP BD OF EDUCATION MAY 2024 LOCAL SCHOOL 1,061,736.59 R 04713724 04713724
DISTRICT TAXES _
4-(11-55-900-003 COUNTY TAX
00215018 1 00313  BURLINGTON COUNTY TREASURER  2ND QTR 2024 COUNTY TAXES 1,039,933.37 R 04/18/24 04718724 24-00142
4-(1-55-900-004 COUNTY LIBRARY TAX
00215018 2 00113  BURLINGTON COUNTY TREASURER  ZND GTR 2024 COUNTY TAXES 96,214.67 R 04/18/24 (04718724 24-00142
4-01-55-900-013 COUNTY FARMLAND PRESERVATION TAX
00215018 3 00113  BURLINGTON COUNTY TREASURER  2NB QTR 2024 COUNTY TAXES 85,952.27 R 04/18/24 04/18/24 24-00142
Fund Total: CURRENT FUND 3,079,797.51
Fund: CAPITAL FUND
4-04~55-921-06D CAPITAL-ORDINANCE#2021-6-D (ROAD CONSTR)
00215108 1 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES — MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 285.00 ® 05/02/24 045/02/24 221522

2021 NIDOT-RCBERTS DRIVE & TREEPTOP LANE
CONSTRUCTION



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 10
07:24 mn Bi11 List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd Chk/void ]
P.0. Id Iiem vendor Item Description Amount Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-04-55-923-050 CAPTTAL-ORDINANCE£2023-5-D (ROADS)
00215104 2 03252  BOUNMD TREE MEDICAL LLC RTF PPE 3,346.56 R 05/02/24 05/03/24 85307397
00215168 2 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCTATES — MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 3,000.00 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 221923
2023 ROAD PROGRAM -
6,346.56
Fund Total: CAPITAL FUND 6,631.56
Fund: DOG FUND
4-12-55-900-903 BURLINGTON COUNTY AKIMAL SHELTER FEES
00215074 100294  BURLINGTON COUNTY ANIMAL & IST QTR 2024 SHELTER SERVICFS 30.00 r 04/29/24 04/29/24 27854473
Fund Total: DOS FUND 30.00
Fund: ESCROW FUND
4-14-56-851-017 DUNKIN DONUTS ({901.01-4) :
00215109 4 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES  MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 3,836.26 R 05/02/24 (5/02/24 221928
4-14-56-851-019 D R HORTON (204-2)
00215109 3 00560  RECHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES ~ MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 3,160.50 R 05/02/24 (5/02/24 221827
£-14-56-851-031 LAUREL RUN LLC (204-2) H%zxo:mmm ESCROW
00215109 2 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMO ASSOCIATES  MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 3.432.70 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 221976
4-14-56-851-045 NFI REAL ESTATE (807-1)
00215085 3 03246  FLORIO PERRUCCI STEINHARDT MARCH 2024 LEGAL 1,160,060 R 04/30/24 04/30/24 628386
00215086 1 02461  (ME ASSOCIATES MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 1.072.00 ® 04/30/24 04/30/24 349230
2,232.00
4-14-56-851-818 DOLAN-BLOCK 203 LOT 6.04-07 STEMMERS LN
00215109 1 00560  RICHARD A ALAIMD ASSOCIATES — MARCH 2024 ENGINEERING 230.00 R 05/02/24 05/02/24 221524

Fund Total: ESCROW FUND

12,851.86



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 11
07:24 AM Bi1l List By Budget Account
Account Description First  Revd PO
p.0. 1d Item vendor Item Description Amount Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Invoice Type
Eund: RECREATION FUND
4-17-55-900-115 RECREATION-HOLITAYS
00215049 1 03494  STEPHANIE YOUNG REIMBURSE-COST OF EASTER CANDY 223.60 R 04723724 04723724
AND SUPPLIES
4-17-55-900-116 RECREATTON-SALARIES & WAGES
00215114 1 00442  TODD MITZELMAN MARCH &APRIL 2024-TRAINING NEW 2,000.00 R 05/03/24 (5/03/24
RECREATION EMPLOYEE
4-37-55-900-118 RECREATION-ADULT SOFTBALL
00215065 103741 GREGORY BOSWELL UMPIRE FEES-WEEK ENDING 1,400.00 R 04729724 04729724
APRIL 28 2024
00215065 2 03741  GREGORY BOSWELL ASSIGNOR FEE 140.00 R 04/29/24 04/29/24
1,540.00 -
£-17-55-900-124 RECRFATION-FIELD & FACTLITY MAINTENANCE
00215073 1 01177 MR BCB'S PORTABLE TOILETS MAY 2024 PORTABLE TOILET 156.79 R 04729724 04/24/24 A-397203
RENTAL-SPORTS COMPLEX SOCCER FIELD
00215073 2 01177 MR BOB'S PORTABLE TOILETS MAY 2024 PORTARLE TOILLET 156.79 ® 04729724 04729724 A-397215
00215073 3 01177 MR BOB'S PORTABLE TOILETS MAY 2024 PORTABLE TOILET 90.00 R 04/29/24 04/29/24 A-397293
403,58
4-17-55-900-126 RECREATION-FLAG FOOTBALL
00214976 1 03107  BSN SPORTS LLC ‘ JUNIOR & PEE WEE FOOTBALLS 1,546.60 R 04/11/24 (04/13/24 975444995
PER QUOTE#21536118
4-17-55-900-131 RECREATION-CONCESSION STAND SALES
00215059 1 03365  ENERGY RESOURCES INC Propane 105.00 R 04/26/24 04/26/24 98142 -
Fund Total; RECREATION FUND 5,818.18
Fund: QOPEN SPACE FUND .
4-18-54-375-200 OPEN SPACE-LAND MAINTENANCE-OTHER EXP
00214699 1 01048  BEN SHAFFER RECREATION INC AGES 2-5 SYNERGY PLAY 50,956.95 BS240149GP

STRUCTURE, 2 BAY SWINGS WITH TOT & BELT
SEATS, ROCKERS, CONTAINERS, BENCH,
BORDERS & CUSTOM SIGN

R 02/27/24 05/02/24



May 3, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 17
07:24 mu : Bill List By Budget Account
Account pescription First  Revd chk/veid PO
P.0. Id Item vendor Item Description Amount  Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Type
4-18-54-375-200 OPEN SPACE-LAND MAINTENANCE-CTHER EXP  Continued
AS PER PROPOSAL#3796
00215048 1 {0063  PSEAG APRIL 2024 ELECIRIC 4,886.03 R D4/23/24 04723724 602809116236
CONCESSION STAND
00215048 2 00063  PSE&G APRIL 2024 ELECTRIC 22.04 R 04/23/24 04/23/24 600408594845
FOOTBALL FIELD
00215078 100989  WILLINGRORO MCPL UTIL AUTH IND QTR 2024 WATER & SEWER 229.40 R 04/30/24 04/30/24
CONCESSION STAND
56,094.42
Fund Total: OPEN SPACE FUND 56,094.42
Fund: POLICE QUTSIDE OVERTIME FUND
4-21-56-850-800 POLICE QUTSIDE OVERTIME EXPENDITURES
00215012 100215  CURRENT FUND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 775.50 R 04/16/24 04/16/24
APRIL 15 2024 PAYROLL . ,
00215082 1 00215  CURRENT FUND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 1,380.11 R 04730724 04730/24
APRIL 29 2024 PAYROLL
: 2,164,861
Fund Total; POLICE QUTSIDE QVERTIME FUND 2,164.61
Fund: SNOW REMOVAL FUND
4-22-56-850-800 SKOW REMOVAL TRUST FUND-EXPENDITURES
00214972 104319  LINDY'S LANDSCAPING INC SNOW PLOWING-JANUARY 16 2024 1,700.00 R 04/10/24 04720724 8217
00214972 2 04319 LINDY'S LANDSCAPING INC SNOW PLOWING-JANUARY 19 2024 4,500.00 R 04/10/24 04/20/24 8241
AS PER INVOICE#R217 & 8241
b,200.00
Fund Total: SNOW REMOVAL FUND 5,200.00
Year Total: 3,169,628.14

Total charged Lines: 166  Total List Amount: 3,174,165.26 Total void Amount: 0.00




April 15, 2024
09:15 AM

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON
Bill List By P.0. Number

Page No: 3

Totals by Year-Fund

Fund Description Fund Budget Revd Budget Held Budget Total  Revenue Total G/L Total Total
CURRENT FUND 4-01 232,28L.91 ¢.00 232,281.91 0.00 0.00 232,281.91
RECREATION FUND 4-17 6,353.16 0.00 6,353.16 0.90 0.00 5,353.15
POLICE QUTSIDE QVERTIME FUND 4-21 15,964.50 0.90 15,964.50 0.00 0.00 15,964.50

Total of A1l Funds: 254,599.57 0.00 254,599.57 0.00 0.00 254,599.57



April 15, 2024

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

Page No: 1

09:15 AM Bi11 List By P.0. Number
P.0. Type: All Open: N Paid: N void: N
Range: 00215002  to (0215005 Rovd: v Held: Y Aprv: N
Format: Detail with Line Item Notes Bid: v State: Y Other: Y Exempt: Y
vendors: All Include Non-Budgeted: Y
Revd Batch Id Ramge: First  to Last
PO # PO Date Vendor Contract PO Type First  Rcvd Chk/void
Ttem Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice
00215002 04/15/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 14,830.00 4-21-56-850-800 B PCLICE OQUTSIDE OVERTIME EXPENDITURES R G4/15/24 94/15/24
2 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 15 2024 1,134.50 4-23-56-850-800 B POLICE QUTSIDE OVERTIME EXPENDITURES R G4/15/24 04/15/24
15,964.50
00215003 04/15/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 3,185.48 4-17-55-900-104 B RECREATION-BEFORE & AFTER SCHOCL PROGRAM R 04/15/24 04715724
2 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 2,307.69 4-17-55-900-116 B RECREATION-SALARIES & WAGES R 04/15/24 04/15/24
3 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 408.51 4-17-55-900-131 B RECREATION-CONCESSION STAND SALES R 04/15/24 04/15/24
4 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 15 2024 243.69 4-17-55-990-104 B RECREATION-BEFCRE & AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM R 04/15/24 04/15/24
5 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 15 2024 176.54  4-17-55-900-116 B RECREATION-SALARIES & WAGES R 04715724 04/15/24
6 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 15 2024 31.25 4-17-55-900-131 B RECREATION-CONCESSICN STAND SALES R 04715724 04/15/24
6,353.16
00215004 04/15/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 9,467.31 4-01-20-120-011 B ADMINISTRATIVE & EXECUTIVE-S&W-REGULAR R 04715724 04/15/24
2 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 3,752.66 4-01-20-130-011 B FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATTON-S& REGULAR R 04/15/24 04/15/24
3 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 2,342.73 4-01-20-150-012 B ASSESSMENT OF TAXES-S&#-REGULAR R 04/15/24 (04/15/24
4 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 4,773.61 4-01-22-195-011 B CONSTRUCTION OFFICIAL-S&W-REGULAR R 04/15/24 {4/15/24
5 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 90,464.36 4-01-25-240-011 B POLICE-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R 04715724 J4/15/24
6 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 198.46 4-01-25-240-014 B POLICE-S&W-REGULAR OVERTIME R 04/15/24 04/15/24
7 BAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 468.00 4-01-25-2£0-017 B FOLICE-S&W-SHIFT SUPERVISOR R 04715724 04/15/24
§ PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 64,337.06 4-01-25-260-011 B EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-S&W REGULAR R (04/15724 (4/15/24
 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 1,644.00 4-01-25-260-012 B EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-S&W-PER DIEM R (4715724 04715724
10 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 1,953.61 4-01-25-260-014 B EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-S§W-OVERTIME R 04/15/24 04/15/24
11 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 24,443.32  4-01-26-290-011 B STREETS & ROADS-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R 04/15/24 04715724
12 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 3,367.12 4-01-42-195-012 B SHARED MCPL SERV AGREEMENTS-CCO-S8W-REG R 04/15/24 04/15/24
13 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 8,259.81 4-01-43-490-011 B MUNICIPAL COURT-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R 04715724 (4/15/24
14 PAYROLL-APRIL 15 2024 579.61 4-01-43-490-014 B MUNICIPAL COURT-SALARIESSWAGES-OVERTIME R 04115724 (4/15/24
15 CLEAN COMM-PAYROLL (4/15/2024) 428.40 4-01-55-900-008 B RESERVE FOR STATE GRANTS R 04715724 (4/15/24

216,980.06



April 15, 2024 TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON page No: 2
09:15 AM Bi11 List By P.C. Number

PO # PO Date Vvendor Contract PO Type First  Rod Chk/void

Item Description’ Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date pate  Invoice

00215005 04/15/24 00202 PAYROLL ACCOUNT

1 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 15 2024 15,301.85 4-01-36-472-286 B FICA & MEDICARE TAX

R 04/15/24 04/15/24

Total Purchase Orders: 4 Total P.0. Line Items: 24 Total List Amount: Total void Amount:

254,559.57

0.00




April 29, 2004
11:06 A

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON
RiT1 List By P.0. Number

Page 0. 3

Totals by Year-Fund

Fund Description Fund gudget Revd Budget Held Budget Total  Revenue Total G/L Totzl Total
CURRENT FUND 4-01 237,892.48 ¢.00 237,892.48 0.00 (.00 237,892.48
RECREATION FUND 4-17 9,970.94 0.00 9,670.94 0.00 0.00 9,970.94
POLICE OUTSIDE OVERTIME FUND 4-21 42,755.89 0.00 42,755.89 0.00 0.00 42,755.89

Total 0f A1l Funds: 290,619.31 0.00 290,619.31 0.00 0.00 290,619.31



Aprit 29, 2024

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

page No: 1

11:06 AM Bi11 List By P.0. Number
p.0. Type: All Open: N Paid: N Void: N
Range: 00215066 to 00215069 Revd: Y Heldr v Aprv: N
Format: Detail with Line Item Notes Bid: v State: Y Other: Y Exempt: Y
vendors: All Include Non-Budgeted: Y
Revd Batch 1d Range: First  to Last
PO # PO Date Vendor Contract PO Type First  Revd chk/void
Item Description Amount Charge Accoumt  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice
00215066 04/29/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 39,717.50 4-21-56-850-800 B POLICE OUTSIDE QVERTIME EXPENDITURES R 04/29/24 04/28/24
7 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 30 2024 3,038.39 4-21-56-850-800 B POLICE OUTSIDE OVERTIME EXPENDITURES R 04729724 04/29/24
42,755.89
00215067 04/29/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 4,803.23 4-17-55-900-104 B RECREATION-BEFORE & AFTFR SCHCOL PROGRAM R 04729724 04729724
2 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 2,307.6% 4-17-55-900-118 B RECRFATION-SALARIES & WAGES R 04/29/24 04/29/24 .
3 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 426,61 4-17-35-900-118 B RECREATION-ADULT SOFTBALL R 04729724 (04/29/24
4 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 1,724.83 4-17-55-900-13% B RECREATION-CONCESSION STAND SALES R (4729724 04729724
5 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 30 2024 367.45  4-17-55-900-104 B RECREATION-BEFORF & AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM R (04/29/24 04/29/24
6 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 30 2024 176.54 4-17-55-900-116 B RECREATION-SALARIES & WAGES R 04/29/24 04729724
7 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 30 2024 32.64 4-17-55-900-118 B RECREATION-ADULT SOFTBALL R 04/29/24 04/29/24
8 FICA & MEDICARE-APRIL 30 2024 131,95 4-17-55-900-131 B RECREATION-CONCESSION STAND SALES R 04/29/24 04/29/24
9,070.94
00215068 04/29/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 9,467.31 4-(1-20-120-011 B ADMINISTRATIVE & EXECUTIVE-S&-REGULAR R 04729724 04729724
2 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 4,521.89 4-01-20-130-011 B FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION-S&W REGULAR R 04/29/24 04/29/24
3 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 2,382.73  4-01-20-150-012 B ASSESSMENT COF TAXES-S&-REGULAR R 04/29/24 04/29/24
4 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 4,773,061 4-01-22-195-011 B CONSTRUCTION QFFICIAL-S&4-REGULAR R 04/29/24 04729/24
5 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 91,067.61 4-01-25-24C-011 B POLICE-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R 04/29/24 04/29/24
6 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 1,295.00 4-01-25-240-014 B POLICE-S&W-REGULAR OVERTIME R 04/29/24 (4/29/24
7 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 238.00 4-01-25-240-017 B POLICE-S&-SHIFT SUPERVISOR R 04/29/24 04729724
§ PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 64,337.06 4-01-25-260-011 B EMERGENCY MEDICAl SERVICES-S& REGULAR R 04/29/24 04729724
9 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 2,124.00 4-01-25-260-012 B EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-S&/-PER DIEM R 04/209/24 04/29/24
10 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 2,750.38  4-01-25-260-014 B EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES-S&W-OVERTIME R 04728724 04/29/24
11 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 24,443.32  4-01-26-290-011 B STREETS & ROADS-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R 04729724 04728724
17 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 3,367.12 4-01-42-195-012 B SHARED MCPL SERV AGREEMENTS-CCO-S&W-REG R 04/28/24 04/28/24
13 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 8,259.81 4-Di-43-490-011 B MUNICIPAL COURT-SALARIES & WAGES-REGULAR R D4720/24 04/29724
14 PAYROLL-APRIL 30 2024 1,030.73 4-01-43-490-014 B MUNICIPAL COURT-SALARTESAWAGES-OVERTIME R 04729724 04729724



April 29, 2024
11:06 AM

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON Page No: 2
Bi1% List By P.0. Number

PO # PO Date Vendor
Ttem Description Amount

Charge Account

Contract PO Type : First  Rovd  Chk/void
Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice

00215068 04/29/24 00002  PAYROLL ACCOUNT

Continued

15 CLEAN CoMM-PAYROLL (4/30/2024) _ 214,20 4-01-55-900-008 B RESERVE FOR STATE GRANTS R 04/29/24 04/29/24
220,232.77
00215069 04/29/24 (0002 PAYROLL ACCOUNT
1 SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 16,924.44  4-01-36-472-286 B FICA & MEDICARE TAX R 04729724 04/29/24
APRIL 30 2024 PAYROLL
2 APRIL 2024 DCRP CONTRIBUTION 735.27 4-01-36-477-299 B DEFINED CONTRIB RETIREMENT PROG-OE-MISC R 04729724 04729724
17,659.71
Total Purchase Orders: 4 Total P.0. Line Ttems: 27 Total List Amount: 280,619.31 Total void Amount: 0.00




TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE
2024 MUNICIPAL BUDGET

RESOLUTION NO. 68-24

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton hereby

authorizes the adoption of the 2024 Budget in the amount of $14,478,496.00. The Local Purpose
Tax Rate will be $0.790.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting
held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New
Jersey 08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member

Burkley

Carr

Mayor Henley

Mungo

Wright




Westampton Township
Burlington County, New Jersey

CERTIFICATION OF APPROVED BUDGET

It is hereby certified that the Approved Budget complies with the requirements of law and
approval is given pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A-78(b) and N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.

It is further certified that the municipality has met the eligibility requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:30-

7.4 and 7.5 and that I, as Chief Financial Officer, have completed the local examination in
compliance with N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.6.

Dated: By:

Chief Financial Officer

This certification form and resolution of the governing body executing such certification should
be annexed to the adopted budget. (N.J.A.C. 5:30-7.6(¢))



WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PARTIAL SETTLEMENT
OF DOLAN CONTRACTORS INC V. WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP

RESOLUTION NO. 72-24

WHEREAS, the Dolan Contractors, Inc. currently has an application pending for the
development of a parcel of property identified as Block 203.8 Lot 1.01 on the official Tax Map of
the Township of Westampton (‘“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Dolan Contractors, Inc. has filed an action in the Superior Court of New
Jersey titled Dolan Contractors Inc. v. Westampton Township challenging the rezoning of the
Property; and

WHEREAS, there are ongoing discussions to settle the above referenced lawsuit, which
the parties wish to continue; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Committee believe that it is in the best interest of the
Township to consent to a dismissal without prejudice of the above referenced lawsuit in order to
continue negotiations on resolving the lawsuit; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, and State of New Jersey that the Township
Solicitor is authorized to consent to the dismissal without prejudice of the action titled Dolan
Contractors Inc. v. Westampton Township now pending before the Superior Court of New Jersey;
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect in accordance law.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee of
the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held in the
Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on May
7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote
Committee Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member
Burkley
Carr
Mayor Henley
Mungo
Wright




TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON AND
THE MEMBERS OF THE IAFF

RESOLUTION NO. 69-24

WHEREAS, the Township and the Fire Department Union Members of the IAFF have
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee has reviewed the Memorandum of Agreement and
desires to enter into a contract with the IAFF for the term of January 1, 2024 to December 31,
2027, which shall be consistent with the Memorandum of Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of the Township of
Westampton hereby approves the terms and conditions set forth in the Memorandum of Agreement
between the Township and the members of the IAFF.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to
sign the successor Memorandum of Agreement between the Township and the IAFF, consistent
with the terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held
in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey
08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote
Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member
Burkley
Carr
Mayor Henley
Mungo
Wright




TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING PROMOTIONAL CRITERIA
FOR LIEUTENANT FOR
THE WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP EMERGENCY SERVICES

RESOLUTION NO. 70-24

WHEREAS, the Township Committee needs to update their promotional policy for
Lieutenant that includes subjective and objective criteria;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the
Township of Westampton sets forth the following promotional criteria to be followed by the
Westampton Township Emergency Services.

ELIGIBILITY

1. All members employed a minimum of three years as full-time Firefighter/EMT with the
Westampton Township Emergency Services at the time of the posting are eligible to
apply for the position of Lieutenant.

2. Possession of New Jersey Division of Fire Safety Incident Management Level II at time
of posting.

3. Possession of New Jersey Division of Fire Safety Fire Officer I at time of posting.

4. Possession of New Jersey Division of Fire Safety Fire Instructor I at time of posting.

TESTING ELEMENTS

All Promotional examinations for positions within the Westampton Township Emergency
Services shall be based upon a competitive examination given to all eligible and interested
members of the Department.

1. Written Exam with a 60-day reading/study time. (30 points)

2. Oral examination by a review board consisting of three or more active and/or retired
commanding or superior officers from other fire and/or EMS agencies. (30 points)

3. Oral examination by a review board consisting of the Fire Chief and other Township
Officials/Employees. (40 points)

4. Yaofpoint (.25) per year of full-time service will be added to each candidate’s final score.



NOTICE OF RESULTS

Each element of the evaluation process will be weighted in the manner set forth above so that the
total weight of all portions of the evaluation constitutes 100 points. The applicant with the
highest composite score of all elements will be placed at the top of the promotional list. The
applicants will be ranked upon completion of all elements of the evaluation process. The results
will be posted in writing to all candidates. The promotional list will be valid for three years from
the date of the list being established. The Fire Chief has the authority to establish a new list at
any time if they so choose to. The Fire Chief has the authority of extending the list one year more
from the original date. Any candidate who wishes to review his/her results may do so within five
days of the distribution of the results. The creation of a promotional list is not a guarantee of
promotion.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective immediately
and remain in effect for the 2024 calendar year.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting
held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New
Jersey 08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member

Burkley

Carr

Mayor Henley

Mungo

Wright




TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON

RESOLUTION APPROVING REFUNDS
FOR 100% TOTALLY DISABLED VETERAN

RESOLUTION NO. 71-24

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a allows for the exemption from taxation from
real and personal property for a Veteran who is a resident who has a total or 100%
permanent disability.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Westampton Township
Committee authorizes the Tax Collector to refund the following 2024 taxes:

Ronald Douglas

1009 Holly Lane
B1410 L21

Effective Date: 4/24/24
Cancel: $$950.73

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey
at their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas
Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on May 7, 2024. Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk.

Wendy Gibson, Township Clerk

Roll Call Vote

Committee Introduced | Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent
Member

Burkley

Carr

Mayor Henley

Mungo

Wright




	05.07.2024 Agenda
	05.07.2024 Closed Session
	3-2024 Floodplain Ord INTRO
	6-2024 COLA Ordinance - 1st Read
	8-2024 Alcohol Consumption - Twp Events 1st read
	67-24 Payment of Vouchers 05.07.24
	68-24 Adopt Budget
	69-24 Resolution Approving MOA and Authorizing Execution of New Contract IAFF
	70-24 Resolution Authorizing Promotion to FD49
	71-24 Tax Refunds TDV and Overpayment



